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Introduction
Known knowns and unknown
unknowns!
Well, it’s been another busy year here
at CVS, with what feels like more of
everything… more members, more
Information, Advice and Guidance
(IAG) delivered, more grants awarded,
more meetings to attend, more
demand to address, and sometimes
more problems to fix!

people, which is why it is so important
that our frontline charities are there to
provide advice and advocacy, food and
company, and much more…

When I looked back on the year
though I was struck more than
anything by the knowns and
unknowns. Perhaps you can
remember this quote from 2002?

Which brings me onto the known
knowns… what we do know here in
Salford is the value of our sector. We
know from our most recent State of the
Sector survey that there are over 1,500
Voluntary, Community and Social
Enterprise (VCSE) organisations
operating in Salford, together making
in excess of 2.4 million positive
interventions every year. We know that
our sector acts as a safety net as well
as being a place where good things
grow and develop. We know that for
every £1 of Salford public sector
funding invested we raise another £7
from elsewhere. We also know that our
sector supports over 46,000
volunteers, giving 115,000 hours of
their time every week, valued at a cool
£104 million. But more than that, we
know that our sector is here in good
times and bad, to deal with the known
knowns, the unknown unknowns and
everything in between.

“There are known knowns.
These are things we know that
we know. There are known
unknowns. That is to say,
there are things that we know
we don't know. But there are
also unknown unknowns.
There are things we don't
know we don't know.”
The (un)known unknowns that have
taxed my brain and challenged our
sector recently include of course the
‘B’ word – Brexit: will we exit the EU
with a deal, without a deal, will we exit
at all, what will the impact be on
communities, will demand on our
sector increase…?! Will we get a new
government soon? Are we going to
face more winters worrying about
flooding? Is it too late to save our
planet? What will the impact be of full
roll-out of Universal Credit? Actually,
that last one’s more of a known known
– we know that Universal Credit is
causing hardship and misery for many

I’m proud to work in a city of
partnerships with people who care,
whatever the ‘weather’…

Alison Page, Chief Executive
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Foreword
I am very proud to report on another
successful year at Salford CVS on
behalf of the Board of Trustees.
Our membership rose again, by 16%,
to 766 VCSE member organisations
and we also added an associate
category for our supporters from other
sectors.
We launched a new Strategic Plan this
year, for the period 2018-2023, which
sets out for stakeholders our priorities
for the next 5 years. Also this year:

VCSE organisation registered on
our volunteering portal
 We launched Skill Givers, a Sport
England funded partnership with our
sister organisation, Macc in
Manchester. Skill Givers is an ESV
initiative for Manchester and Salford
 The Salford VCSE Strategy 20182023 was launched at our VCSE
conference
 We developed and signed a
Memorandum of Understanding
between the VCSE sector in Salford
and the partners in Salford Together
(CCG, Council, Salford Royal, GM
Mental Health and Salford Primary
Care Together)

 More grants were distributed in this
financial year than ever before,
including new funds around mental
health and recovery
 Our biggest-ever Heart of Salford
awards ceremony was held, with
more than 350 people attending
 41% more 1-to-1 information, advice
and guidance (IAG) sessions were
delivered than in the previous year
 We supported 63 VCSE
organisations with holding accounts
and carried out 1,290 DBS checks

As a custodian of grant funding, along
with holding small amounts of money
for some of Salford's smallest
community groups, our audited
accounts are understandably complex,
so please do ask us if you would like
us to explain anything you read in this
report.

Core to our activity is working in
partnership to foster social change.
Highlights included:
 We were accredited by the Living
Wage Foundation as a ‘Living Wage
Friendly Funder’
 We partnered with Salford City
Council to develop a new EmployerSupported Volunteering (ESV)
initiative called ‘24 Hours to Make a
Difference,’ which enables the
council’s staff to volunteer 24 hours
of their paid work time with a Salford

Finally, I'd like to take this opportunity
to thank my fellow trustees, our staff
and volunteers, plus all of our partners
and funders for all of their support.

Chris Fox, Chair
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Legal and administrative
information
Status
Council Representatives

The charity (no. 519361) is a company
limited by guarantee, (no. 1948293)
with its governing document being its
Memorandum and Articles of
Association. The liability of the
members in respect of the guarantee is
limited to £10 each. As at 31 March
2019 there were 766 members. The
charity’s trading name is Salford CVS.

Non-voting ambassadors:
Cllr Barbara Bentham to 17th May 2018
Cllr Laura Edwards from 17th May
2018
Cllr Sophia Linden from 17th May 2018

Senior Management Team
Alison Page - Chief Executive
Kirsten Blackwood - Deputy Chief
Executive (Finance and Resources)
Louise Murray - Deputy Chief
Executive (Projects and Partnerships)
to 20th January 2019

The directors are appointed according
to the Articles of Association and are
referred to as the Board of Trustees.

Investment Powers
The charity’s powers of investment are
governed by its Memorandum and
Articles of Association.
The Trustees who are also the
directors of the charity for the purposes
of the Companies Act 2006, present
their report with the financial
statements of the charity for the year
ended 31 March 2019. The Trustees
have adopted the provision of
Accounting and Reporting by Charities:
Statement of recommended Practice
applicable to charities preparing their
accounts in accordance with the
Financial Reporting Standard
applicable in the UK and Republic of
Ireland (FRS 102) (effective 1 January
2015).

Board of Trustees
Chris Fox (Chair)
John Phillips (Treasurer)
Janice Lowndes
Ray Mashiter
Ged Devlin
Grace Dyke
Dr Kevin Kane
Dr Jennifer Rouse
Barbara Bentham (from 17th May
2018)
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Principle Objectives
The charity’s principle objectives as set
out in its Memorandum of Association
are:
1

2

3

To promote any charitable
purposes for the benefit of the
public principally but not
exclusively in the local government
area of Salford and its environs
(area of benefit). And in particular,
build the capacity of third sector
organisations and provide them
with the necessary support,
information and services to enable
them to pursue or contribute to any
charitable purpose.

Registered office
The Old Town Hall
5 Irwell Place
Eccles
Salford
M30 0FN

To promote, organise and facilitate
co-operation and partnership
working between third sector,
statutory and other relevant bodies
in the achievement of the above
purposes within the area of benefit.

Bankers
Unity Trust Bank plc
Four Brindleyplace
Birmingham
B1 2JB

For the purposes of this article: a)
‘third sector’ means charities,
voluntary organisations and social
enterprises. b) ‘charities’ are
organisations which are
established for exclusively
charitable purposes in accordance
with the law of England and Wales.
c) ‘voluntary organisations and
social enterprises’ are independent
organisations, which are
established for purposes that add
values to the community as a
whole, or a significant section of
the community, and which are not
permitted by their constitution to
make a profit for private
distribution. Voluntary
organisations and social
enterprises do not include local
government or other statutory
authorities.

Auditors
Wyatt Morris Golland Ltd.
Statutory Auditors
Chartered Accountants
Park House
200 Drake Street
Rochdale
OL16 1PJ
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Public Benefit Outcomes

Custodian Funds

Salford CVS operates for the benefits
of its membership and our ethos is
demonstrated in public benefit to the
citizens of Salford. Trustees have
referred to the Charity Commission’s
general guidance on public benefit
when reviewing the Strategy, Vision,
Mission and Values of the organisation
and our six thematic strands of work.
In particular the Trustees have
considered how our planned activities,
developments and decisions affect our
impact on Salford citizens. We use
monitoring and evaluation systems to
demonstrate our outcomes and impact,
which further demonstrate our public
benefit. Underlying this is our
commitment to Quality, which is one of
our six Values.

The charity holds funds on behalf of
other organisations as a custodian.
There are a number of reasons why
the organisations cannot hold their
funds, including: the organisation is too
small to operate a bank account; there
are not sufficient people in the
organisation for adequate controls as
stipulated by a grant provider; or, the
organisation does not feel it has
appropriate resources to handle its
own funds.
When a fund is taken on by the charity,
there is both an application form and
ID provided by the organisation, or the
terms from the grant provider are that
the funds are held by the charity. Any
movement of funds must be supported
by written authorisation from a
designated member of the
organisation.
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Ensuring our work
delivers our objectives
Strategic Priorities
We launched a new Strategic
Plan this year for the period
2018-2023, which sets out for
stakeholders our priorities for
the next 5 years. We have
determined our priorities in
consultation with our
membership, VCSE Sector
colleagues, community
stakeholders, and public sector
partners.

Salford CVS: Strategic Priorities 2018 - 2023
THEME

Work strands

INVESTMENT

Funding /
Fundraising

Contracts /
Commissioning

Trading

VOICE

Representation

Influencing

Campaigning

SHARE

Resources

Information

Collaboration

VOLUNTEER

Governance

Good Practice

Brokerage

COMMUNITY

Poverty

Inequality

Wellbeing

IMPACT

Compliance

Quality

Social Value
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Strategic Partnership
Working
Salford CVS is proud to play a key
strategic role in the city of Salford,
working with VCSE sector colleagues
and partners from across sectors to
help create ‘A Better and Fairer
Salford’.

A significant number of these and
additional meetings and events were
also attended by VOCAL Forum VCSE
representatives.
You might ask why do we go to so
many meetings…? Well, this vital work
helps to ensure that the VCSE sector
is heard by our public sector and other
strategic partners and is able to
influence a variety of agendas – from
health and wellbeing to skills and work;
community safety to children’s
services; and much, much more.
Partnerships we contributed to
in Salford during 2018/19
included:




Attendance at and
contributions to strategic
partnerships




During the year, Salford CVS attended
and contributed to 192 strategic
partnership meetings in Salford – a
24% increase on the previous year;
and 89 in Greater Manchester – a 16%
increase on 2017/18. This is a total of
281 strategic meetings that needed to
be prepared for, attended, contributed
to and reported back on.







281





Strategic meetings
attended
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Carbon Literacy Forum
City Mayors’ Leaders Group
Children and Young People’s Trust
Board (latterly the 0-25 Advisory
Board) and associated working
groups
Children’s Commissioners Group
Children & Young People’s
Emotional Health & Wellbeing
Partnership
Community Learning Trust
Community Safety Partnership
(and the Cohesion Working Group)
Conditionality and Sanctions Task
Force
Equalities Network
Financial Inclusion Practitioners
Group
LGBT Multi-Agency Partnership
Health and Wellbeing Board
Homelessness Strategy working
group
Live Well (mental health) – Design
Group and Collaborative

Salford Community and Voluntary Services
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Living Wage Task Group
Locality Plan Programme Board
Safeguarding Adults Board
Safeguarding Children’s Board
Salford Dementia Action Alliance
Salford Estates Group
Salford Learning City
Salford Social Enterprise City
Salford Social Value Alliance
Salford Together – Integrated Care
Advisory Board (latterly the Adults
Advisory Board)
Salford Together – Neighbourhood
Steering Group
Salford Together - Provider Board
Skills and Work Board
Tackling Poverty Task Force
Volunteering Strategic Partnership

Leaders in GM
Workshops on the GM Spatial
Framework, Industrial Strategy,
Good Employment Charter, Green
and Digital Summits

Voice & Influence work
During 2018/19 we organised and
facilitated 21 VOCAL VCSE thematic
forums for voice and influence,
engaging a total of 358 participants.

358
VOCAL participants
Partnerships we contributed to in
Greater Manchester during 2018/19
included:












Some examples of topics covered in
these forums:
VOCAL Leaders Forum focused on
delivering the VCSE Strategy for
Salford (2018-2023) and developing an
associated action plan; developing
(with VOCAL Wellbeing
representatives) a Memorandum of
Understanding between the VCSE
sector and the partners in Salford
Together; Emergency Planning and
the VCSE sector’s role; Tackling
Poverty and practical action; Integrated
Commissioning Arrangements
between Salford Council and NHS
Salford CCG; and the development of
a GM VCSE Policy paper.

10GM (a joint venture between the
CVS’ in Greater Manchester)
GM Chief Officers (10GM and
GMCVO)
GM Connect - Information
Governance
GM Devolution VCSE Reference
Group, including various VCSE
Assemblies and sub-groups
around population health,
commissioning, inclusive economy
GM Living Wage campaign
GM Moving / Sport England – GM
meetings and also the Salford local
pilot
GM Social Enterprise Network
GM Social Investment Fund
GM Social Value Network
GM Volunteering steering group

VOCAL Children, Young People &
Families Forum focused on Holiday
Hunger; LGBT young people; and
Suicide & Self Harm Prevention.
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VOCAL Environment Forum held an
interactive session with RHS
Bridgewater and also undertook a site
visit to the Groundwork Ecology Park.

Advancing Equalities in Greater
Manchester
The purpose of this workshop was to
ensure a collaborative and inclusive
approach to shaping the Equality,
Diversity and Inclusion priorities for
Salford and Trafford, and to influence
the proposed GM Wellness & Inclusion
Partnership. This event was planned
and facilitated by Salford CVS and
BHA for Equality.

VOCAL Wellbeing, Health & Care
Forum focused on Personalisation and
the promotion of Personal Health
Budgets as part of the GM PCCA
programme of work; social prescribing
in GM and Salford, including the
development of the Wellbeing Matters
programme; the Salford Carer’s
Strategy, including influencing a more
collaborative approach being adopted;
involvement in properly co-producing
the new Salford All Age Mental Health
Strategy.
VOCAL Community Safety Forum
focused on Brexit and its potential
impact on our sector, Community
Cohesion and Hate Crime.
VOCAL Inclusive Communities
Forum was launched in February 2019
with a well-attended workshop
delivered in conjunction with CLES,
focusing on the content of Salford’s
planned Inclusive Economy Strategy
and what role the VCSE sector could
play.

Lunch & Learn workshop on New
Models of Care
The purpose of this workshop was to
raise awareness across the wider
VCSE sector about the new models of
care that are being implemented in
Salford by the Salford Together
partnership, including neighbourhood
working forums.

The Volunteer Co-ordinator’s Forum
focused on volunteering good practice,
safeguarding, DBS checks and much
more…
In addition, we organised seven
strategic workshops and our annual
VCSE Conference, engaging a total of
281 participants. We also collaborated
on wider initiatives in Salford and in
GM, enabling the participation of many
more people from across the VCSE
sector.

Feedback from delegates included:

“Excellent information on
new initiatives – able to ask
questions and explore how
the new models of care will
benefit our clients”

Strategic workshops we delivered in
year included:

“Provided my organisation
with important information
on the care system, about
14
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changes and improvements
and how it can affect the
community”

participated throughout the day. We
made the day as interactive as
possible, with electronic voting and
feedback via Mentimeter.

“I am in a better position to
know who to communicate
with and how”

The conference opened with ‘Four
Seasons’, a review of the year from
Alison Page, Chief Executive of
Salford CVS, which was followed by
local perspectives from Delana
Lawson of Healthwatch Salford,
Aderonke Apata from African Rainbow
Family and Manchester Migrants
Solidarity, Jasmin Hassan from
Women with Wings, and Marie Carroll
and Mike Thorpe from The Broughton
Trust.

Hidden young people not in
employment, education or training

This was then followed by our morning
keynote speaker, Dr Jenny Rouse from
The Big Lottery Fund, on the topic
‘Investing in the VCSE Sector’.

The purpose of this workshop was to
inform the sector about the ‘Hidden
Young People’ research undertaken by
Salford University and to seek views,
opinions and input into Salford City
Council’s NEET (Not in Education,
Employment or Training) Strategy.
Round Table - VCSE support to
Carers and the GM Carers Work
Due to demand from the sector to
focus in more detail on carers work, we
organised a roundtable event to look at
the work of Greater Manchester Carers
Network in developing the GM Carers
Charter and the tools they used to
underpin this work, in order to further
influence the development of the new
Carers Strategy for Salford.

We then launched ‘At the heart of
creating a better and fairer Salford: A
strategy for the voluntary, community
and social enterprise (VCSE) sector in
Salford 2018 – 2023’, with Anthony
Hassall (SCCG) and David Seager
(SCC) speaking alongside VCSE
Leaders. The conference was also an
opportunity for us to consult with
delegates on the key messages of the
MoU between the VCSE sector and
Salford Together partners.

Annual VCSE Conference
2018
This year’s annual VCSE conference
was held on 5th July 2018 at AJ Bell
Stadium. More than 170 delegates
from local voluntary, community, social
enterprise and public sector
organisations attended and
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The afternoon plenary, entitled
‘Enterprisingly Social’, was chaired by
Grace Dyke, Co-Founder and Director
of the social enterprise Yellow Jigsaw
and featured:

Disability Rights UK on the topic of
‘Inclusion in the VCSE Sector’.
Feedback from delegates
demonstrated that the conference was
well received, with comments such
as…

 Fay Selvan, Founder and Chief
Executive, The Big Life Group
 Lucy Danger, Founder and
Managing Director, EMERGE
 Geoff Thompson MBE, Founder
and Executive Chair, Youth
Charter

“The well organised,
staffed workshops were a
place to listen and learn”
“Really enjoyed it, was a
great day, very interesting
and gained lots of
knowledge”

The day also saw us deliver with
partners a wide range of workshops:
 21st Century Volunteers - adapting
roles for today’s volunteers
 Futurism - exploring the concept of
community in a virtual world
 Let’s Make Campaigning Great
Again!
 Money, Money, Money - learn
more about the GM Social
Investment Fund
 Hearts and Minds: telling your
social story
 Tech for Good
 Pound-Stretching: maximising
resources
 Trading for Social Benefit

“The quality and inspiring
keynote speakers was
exceptional”

Find out more about our
conference on our website:
bit.ly/2Sp80i2

Salford VCSE Strategy
2018 - 2023
Following the signing of the VCSE
Manifesto in 2016 by Paul Dennett,
there was a subsequent joint
commitment between the City Mayor
and other public sector leaders to
develop a more strategic relationship
with the VCSE sector in Salford. A
multi-agency writing group which
included VCSE leaders, Salford City

We ended the day with an entertaining
and irreverent speech from Leo
Capella, Communications Officer at
16
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Council and NHS Salford CCG was
formed to develop a VCSE Strategy for
Salford.

implementation of the strategy over the
five year period.

Development Plans 2019/20

Salford CVS had led extensive
engagement and discussion at
our VCSE Conference in 2017,
followed up by work throughout
the next 12 months, culminating
in the launch by the partners to
the strategy of the final version
at the VCSE Conference on 5th
July 2018.




The Vision of the Strategy is:


‘A city where voluntary
organisations, community
groups and social
enterprises are at the
heart of creating a better
and fairer Salford’




The final version can be
downloaded from our
website:

Organise our 5th annual VCSE
conference on the theme ‘Radical
Roots to Practical Action’
Jointly organise a ‘Tale of Two
Cities’ conference with Macc and
Gaddum to celebrate 100 years of
Manchester and Salford Council of
Social Service, the organisation
out of which Salford CVS emerged
in 1973
Continue to deliver the action
plans for the VCSE Strategy and
Health & Social Care MoU – with
relevant partners
Develop more regular ‘lunch and
learn’ strategic workshops on
specific topics
Ensure a diverse range of VCSE
representatives are able to play a
key role in all of Salford’s strategic
partnership boards, including the 5
emerging (health) neighbourhood
forums

Salford Together – Health
and Care in Salford

bit.ly/2no8jLJ

In 2018, Salford CVS, members of the
VOCAL VCSE Leaders Forum, the
VOCAL Wellbeing, Health and Care
VCSE Forum and the existing partners
in Salford Together, committed to
signing a Memorandum of
Understanding (2018-2021) that gives
the VCSE sector an equitable role as a
key strategic partner in health and
social care.

During the rest of 2018/19, a writing
group (made up of Salford CVS, VCSE
representatives from the VOCAL
Leaders Forum, Salford City Council
and NHS Salford CCG) continued to
meet in order to progress the
development of a comprehensive
action plan and evaluation framework
alongside agreeing governance
arrangements to oversee the
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The principles at the heart of the MoU
are:

health and social care transformation
as formal partners in Salford Together.



This investment has ensured that the
VCSE sector has played a key
strategic role in Salford’s health and
social care transformation through
resourcing the Salford Together VCSE
Partnerships Lead role, initially for one
year, to ensure that the sector has
voice, representation and influence in
strategic planning and delivery. The
investment has also enabled elected
VCSE representatives to receive
modest backfill payments so that they
contribute to the strategic board
meetings and forums of Salford
Together.









Prevention, early help and
intervention
Person-centred
Co-creating
Doing with, not for
Asset-based approaches to
supporting people
Self-care
Promoting independence
Just enough support when needed

The MoU describes the ambitions and
aims of the partnership, as well as
setting out the commitments for action
by the health sector partners (Salford
City Council, NHS Salford Clinical
Commissioning Group, Salford Royal
Foundation Trust, Salford Primary
Care Together and Greater
Manchester Mental Health Trust) to:
*Involve * Include * Collaborate * Value
* Invest * in the VCSE sector in
Salford, in line with the pillars of the
Salford VCSE Strategy 2018 – 2023.
The commitment to the MoU led to
some financial investment into the
VCSE sector by Salford Together,
under the banner of ‘VCSE Voices
Matter’, which has enabled VCSE
participation in the development of

Paul Dennett, Mayor of
Salford, signing the MoU.
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Development Plans 2019/20

In late 2018 and early 2019, Salford
CVS, VCSE VOCAL Representatives
and leaders from the partners in
Salford Together co-produced a
Collaboration Agreement, which
underpins the MoU. The Agreement
states how the shared ambitions,
commitments and understanding
between the partners will be delivered
in practice, as well as setting out a
SMART Action Plan for achieving
these.

In 2019-20 Salford CVS and VCSE
sector representatives will continue to
work with the partners in Salford
Together (Salford City Council, NHS
Salford CCG, Salford Royal
Foundation Trust, Salford Primary
Care Together, Greater Manchester
Mental Health Trust) to ensure that the
principles of the MoU and
Collaboration Agreement are
embedded within their strategic plans.

The Collaboration Agreement was
presented to the Adult Advisory Board,
in March 2019, alongside a Salford
Together proposal for the development
of Integrated Health and Social Care
Neighbourhood working, which
included an extension to the ‘VCSE
Voices Matter’ investment until March
2020. The Adult Advisory Board
approved both the Collaboration
Agreement and the Salford Together
investment proposal; this has ensured
that the VCSE sector continues to play
a strategic role in the transformation of
health and social care in Salford.

We will work towards the mainstream
funding of the ‘VCSE Voices Matter’
initiative through the planned Salford
VCSE Investment Strategy with the
aim of securing strategic voice and
representation for the VCSE sector for
the future.
We will ensure that the VCSE sector is
at the centre of the planning,
development and implementation of
new models of health and social care.
For example, this will include the
emerging Integrated Health and Social
Care Neighbourhood leadership
models that are being established
across the city and also the new NHS
Primary Care Networks.
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VCSE Development
Support
Development Support
Other popular areas of support include:
Throughout the year we have
continued to focus on supporting
frontline VCSE organisations in the
fight against poverty and inequality in
Salford. This remains a cornerstone of
our work.

 Setting up a new group /
organisation / social enterprise
 Incorporation of charities and
social enterprises
 Safeguarding (children and adults)
 DBS advice
 Marketing and communications
 Proof-reading bids and
governance documents
 Governance
 Policies and procedures
 Premises / buildings
 Insurance / legal
 GDPR (data protection)

Providing a wide range of Information,
Advice and Guidance (IAG) to
voluntary organisations, charities,
community groups and social
enterprises of all shapes and sizes
from across the city remains the
foundation of the work we do at Salford
CVS.

“Salford CVS’ knowledge
and understanding of the
communities they support,
enables them to assist
small charities and groups
like ourselves to grow and
work alongside like-minded
organisations.”
This year also saw a rise in the
number of training workshops we
delivered, increasing by 13.6% on the
previous year (44 in 2017-18 to 50 in
2018/19). A total of 648 people
attended these workshops throughout
the year.

In 2018/19 the number of 1-to-1
support sessions we have delivered
has risen by 41% from the previous
year (317 in 2017-18 to 447 in
2018/19).
Funding remains the number one
request for support.

This year we’ve also delivered some
new workshops, including:
 Basic Budgeting

20

Salford Community and Voluntary Services
Trustees’ Report for the year ended 31 March 2019
 Successful Property Management
(in partnership with the Ethical
Property Foundation)
 Let’s Talk Good Finance - Social
Investment (in conjunction with
GMCVO and Big Society Capital)
 Funding Focus with Children in
Need

Telling your Social Story led to the
development of Demonstrating Impact
workshops to support VCSE
organisations to improve how they
communicate their impact.
Delivering Adult Safeguarding and
Children’s Safeguarding training
sessions remains a core part of the
work we do. This year, we delivered
Adult Safeguarding training to 116
people from 48 organisations and
Children’s Safeguarding training to 82
people from 52 organisations.

Our Annual VCSE Conference has
also given us the opportunity to
broaden the workshops we deliver.
These included:









Trading for social benefit
Tech for good
Pound-stretching
Telling your social story
Futurism
21st Century Volunteering
Campaigning
Money, Money, Money

“We’re better able to deal
with adult safeguarding
issues now and have put in
place policies and
procedures to ensure we
can safeguard our staff
and volunteers.”

The conference workshops enabled us
to test the water to see where we could
develop our training offer.

As funding is our number one enquiry,
we have developed a wraparound
service which includes training (Win
That Bid and Funding Focus), Funding
Bulletins, 1-to-1 IAG and proofreading
of bids and tenders.

10%
Growth in readership for
the 10GM Funding
E-bulletin in 2018/19

As a result of 21st Century
Volunteering, we commissioned the
workshop lead to deliver Effective
Volunteer Recruitment sessions during
the year.

This year, we have supported VCSE
organisations to successfully apply for
a range of funding, including Reaching
Communities, Awards for All, Sport

The Money, Money, Money workshop
was followed up with the Let’s Talk
Good Finance workshop.
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England, Children in Need, Arts
Council England, Tampon Tax fund,
Greggs Foundation, Forever
Manchester, Hamilton Davies Trust
and many more.

Another key area of work has been
supporting VCSE organisations with
their legal structures. It is important to
find the right legal status for
organisations so that they can grow,
take on property, increase their funding
opportunities and employ staff, etc.

In November 2018, we ran a
training session on the
Children in Need grants.
This was attended by an
organisation that had
previously applied for a
grant from Children in
Need on a number of
occasions and had been
unsuccessful each time.
They had come to the point
where they had all but
given up on applying for it
ever again. The feedback
from them after the course
was “I can honestly say it is
the best funding training I
have attended by far.”
They reapplied for the
funding and were awarded
£30,000 over 3 years.

In 2018/19 the process for applying for
charity status with the Charity
Commission became a longer and
more challenging process. Salford
CVS supports applicants by guiding
them through their constitution options,
identifying and advising on charitable
objects, proof-reading applications and
supporting them to submit responses
to the Charity Commission. The
process now takes approximately six
months. This year we supported six
community groups to become a
Registered Charity.
The growth in the number of people
who want to establish a social
enterprise also continued, with us
helping 17 groups to formally register
as Community Interest Companies.
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We have been working with
a particular group since
April 2017 when we helped
them set up as a
community group that
helps people with drug and
alcohol issues by providing
a peer support and
befriending service. As
they have grown we have
supported them to secure
grants, including Awards
for All.

DBS and Backroom
Services Support
We offer a Disclosure and Barring
Service (DBS) that provides
information, advice and guidance to
organisations across Greater
Manchester wishing to obtain DBS
checks for their staff and volunteers.
During the year we carried out 1,290
DBS checks, of which 501 were for
Salford organisations (the rest were
customers across GM). The service
offers training to a member of staff on
eligibility and how to complete the DBS
forms, so they can complete the forms
themselves. This service saves time
and also means that staff and
volunteers don’t have to travel to
complete their DBS check.

Last year they started to
look at how they could
expand their service and
start employing someone.
To do this they needed to
change their legal status we helped them to apply to
become a charity and they
became a CIO in January
2019. At the same time we
supported them with their
application to the National
Lottery - Reaching
Communities grant, they
were successful with this
application and received a
grant of £111,000 over
three years.

The service also supports individuals
to sign up to the DBS update service to
enable them to use their checks with
multiple organisations – this not only
saves time but valuable financial
resources for both them and the
organisation they work or volunteer for.

218

Salford organisations
given IAG on DBS checks
In total we delivered Information,
Advice and Guidance to 218 Salford
organisations. In some cases this
resulted in organisations realising that
DBS checks were not required as the
roles did not meet the eligibility criteria
for a DBS check.
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During 2018/19, Salford CVS
continued to provide a range of
financial support services to the VCSE
sector in Salford, including:

Payroll
We provide a service to small
organisations who do not have the
time or expertise to process their own
payroll – thus ensuring both legal
compliance and best practice. This is
an area of work that has grown by
almost 7% during the year and it is our
aim going forward to further grow this
service to meet sector need.

Holding Accounts
We provided this popular, free service
to 63 Salford groups / organisations
during the year. Benefits included
enabling them to access grant funding;
be able to pay for supplies and
services in a way that can be audited;
and also ensure segregation of duties
for those organisations where there
are not enough people (willing or
capable) to be able to manage this
themselves.

“CVS spent time with us to
help set up our payroll, as a
new organisation we hadn’t
employed people before
and had to start from
scratch. They helped us
understand our obligations
to our new staff, supported
us to register with HMRC
and our chosen pension
provider and then guided
us through the process.
CVS often went the extra
mile, being there and
providing support so we
could get on doing what we
do best! This made a huge
difference to our
organisation, we feel safe
in the knowledge that we
are compliant!”

Whilst we usually offer this service for
a maximum of six months, some
organisations will not be able to open
bank accounts in this time for a
number of reasons, including the
transient nature of their volunteers, the
financial history of volunteers, or the
capacity / capability of the group or
organisation to manage a bank
account.
Salford CVS is therefore acting as a
custodian of these funds and they are
separately listed in our audited
accounts (see page 55).
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Book-keeping & financial
management support

raising awareness of the VCSE sector
in Salford including; Student
Volunteers’ Week, Small Charity Week
and International Women’s Day.

This practical service is provided to
VCSE organisations by our team of
experienced and qualified finance staff
in order to help them manage their
finances better and remain compliant
with legal requirements.

We celebrated International Women’s
Day 2019 with a campaign recognising
women who make a difference in
Salford. We received such an
overwhelming response that we
extended the 'Women of the Hour'
campaign to run over two days;
showcasing one woman an hour and
sharing details of the amazing work
they do in Salford.

This service includes budgeting and
financial planning, producing quarterly
management accounts, dealing with
HMRC, VAT support, and a wide range
of other advice and guidance on an ad
hoc basis.

Information and
Communications
Communications is an important part
of our work; helping us to ensure that
the VCSE sector in Salford knows
what we do and how we can help.
We are a reliable source of quality
information for local VCSE
organisations, connecting them to
available support, resources and
opportunities.

94,020

“It’s the little things like
this that make all of the
hard work, tears, doubts
and setbacks worth it,
because our work is
making a difference to
#WomenInSalford. Thank
you to Salford CVS for the
gift.”

Hits on the Salford CVS
website for 2018/19
Last year more people than ever
accessed our website (up by 5%). Our
site is full of useful resources including;
factsheets, a funding search,
volunteering portal, latest VCSE news,
events, reports and policy templates.

- Kimberly, Visit from the Stork CIC

We have delivered successful
communications campaigns
throughout the year celebrating and
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51%

we will be ensuring we have a bespoke
offer to be able to respond to demand.

Increase in likes on Salford
CVS’ Facebook page
We communicate across a variety of
channels to ensure we reach a diverse
range of organisations, from
community groups to national charities.
Our audiences have grown across all
of our channels; we have 1,953 new
Twitter followers, 189 new Facebook
likes and a 13% increase in our mailing
subscribers. This has helped us to
reach more VCSE organisations in
Salford.

Homelessness

Follow us on twitter,
Facebook and Instagram!

Responding to homelessness, housing
insecurity, and wider issues around
poverty remains a pressing issue in
Salford. Salford CVS will ensure we
have a focus on supporting those
frontline VCSE organisations who are
working with statutory partners to
strategically and practically address
these issues in our city and across
Greater Manchester. We will
particularly focus on adult
safeguarding, as homeless people
remain some of the most vulnerable
adults in society. We will also continue
to practically support our foodbanks,
food clubs, ‘Christmas’ dinners, period
poverty campaigns and toy appeals
through 1-to-1 IAG, networking and
promotion, and acting as a collection
point.

Development Plans
2019/20
In 2019-20, we will be prioritising the
following specific areas of work:

Impact of Universal Credit

Neighbourhood working

With the growth in the use of
foodbanks and increased demand on
advice services it is clear that some
Salford residents continue to be
negatively impacted by Universal

With the development of an increased
focus on neighbourhood working in the
city and the rise of social prescribing,
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Credit. Salford CVS will continue to be
involved strategically in tackling
poverty work in the city, and also
practically work with the Salford
Foodshare Network and other relevant
VCSE frontline organisations to identify
emerging issues at early stages so we
can support their work.

including people with lived experience,
and Salford CVS will continue to play a
key role in this work.

Demonstrating Impact
In 2019/20 our Development Services
will have a greater focus on Impact,
including by identifying case studies
focused on:




Growth of VCSE groups and
organisations
Funding support
Partnership development

Safeguarding
This remains a priority area for Salford
CVS and we will continue to review our
work, deliver training and work closely
with Salford City Council’s Salford
Safeguarding Children Partnership and
Salford Safeguarding Adults Board to
ensure that the VCSE sector is fully
supported to provide a safe
environment, practices and activities
for the people of Salford.

Mental Health
We will continue to support VCSE
organisations working in the field of
mental health, including the local
Mental Health Forum and the annual
Mad Pride event. The development of
Living Well Salford, based on the
Lambeth Model, is redesigning mental
health systems in Salford through
co-production with our sector and

DBS and payroll services
We aim to further develop these core
services in 2019/20.
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Volunteer Centre
Volunteer Centre Salford remains the
city’s only accredited Volunteer Centre
(VCQA accredited by NVCO) and is a
significant work strand for Salford
CVS.

2018 was the first time that we
operated a Volunteers’ Week Activity
Fund, awarding grants totalling over
£9,900 to 21 different organisations so
that they could run volunteering events
during Volunteers’ Week. This enabled
organisations to celebrate their existing
volunteers and / or recruit new
volunteers.

During the year we continued to deliver
a number of core functions as part of
our Volunteer Centre offer, with the
aim of providing support for volunteers
and support for volunteer-involving
organisations.
Promoting volunteering opportunities
to Salford residents is core to the work
we do at the Volunteer Centre. We do
this through our dedicated online
Volunteering Portal, alongside regular
drop-ins, promotions and outreach
activities.

Examples included:
Salford Healthy Communities engaged
new volunteers and brought together
their existing volunteers through
holding a craft session.
Girlguiding Swinton Division held a
recognition event for more than 100 of
their volunteers. They had these
badges especially made as a token of
their thanks and they were given to all
Girl Guiding volunteers across Salford.

Volunteers’ Week, which runs every
year between 1-7 June, is always a
great opportunity to get the message
out there.
The theme in 2018 was ‘Volunteering
for All’ and we worked hard to try to
ensure volunteering recruitment and
recognition had a high profile in the
city. The City Mayor even agreed to
turn the usually magenta Spirit of
Salford logo orange for the week.
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In September, we took part in Salford’s
Big Day Out on the lawns of the Civic
Centre. The weather was kind to us
and this vibrant and busy event was a
good opportunity to promote
volunteering and Salford CVS’s widerange of services. We were supported
by some of our Volunteer Wellbeing
Champions and managed to recruit a
few more during the day.

You Can Community Club took their
team of volunteers for a Bridgewater
Canal Cruise and afternoon tea to
thank them and celebrate their
achievements. They also gave
volunteers certificates through our
recognition scheme.

Salford CVS is committed to helping
develop a diverse range of
volunteering opportunities across
Salford in order to ensure that those
who want to volunteer have
opportunities to do so and during the
year we supported the creation of 141
new volunteering opportunities across
Salford, from assisting at the new RHS
Garden Bridgewater to knitting
babywear!

As well as supporting other
organisations’ events we also held our
own recruitment and celebration
events. This year we partnered with
The Lowry to host a volunteer
recruitment event at their venue. We
were also joined by 15 local
organisations to promote their
opportunities. As part of the event
Academy of Fun put on arts activities,
Greater Manchester Fire Service
brought along their parade vehicle to
attract visitors, Barton Athletic brought
their weightlifting equipment and The
Lowry gave tours of the theatre.

One of our focuses during the year
was on trying to understand the
barriers to young people volunteering;
and we worked with young people and
volunteer-involving organisations to
explore the issues.
For instance, we attended an event
called Finding my Future that
Connexions and Children’s Services
organised, aimed at 16-25 year olds.
The event was busy and 10 young
people expressed an interest in
volunteering. We followed them up and
offered our support to help find suitable
volunteering opportunities.
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Student Volunteering Week took place
between 11-19 February and to raise
awareness of student volunteering we
filmed two students from Salford
talking about their experiences and
what they get from volunteering. The
videos can be viewed here:

At Salford CVS we are acutely
conscious that volunteering costs, both
in terms of recruiting, inducting,
training and supervising volunteers
and in terms of paying volunteers’ outof-pocket expenses. In order to help
address the latter issue, we awarded
29 Volunteers’ Expenses Fund grants,
worth over £21,000, to some of our
smaller VCSE organisations during the
year. These grants paid for items such
as travel expenses, protective clothing
and equipment, the cost of caring for
dependants, and the cost of DBS
checks.

bit.ly/2oFOUq0

At Salford CVS and Volunteer Centre
we believe it is vitally important that
volunteers are engaging in
opportunities that have quality and
safety at their heart, so we spend quite
a lot of time supporting volunteerinvolving organisations to develop new
opportunities and ensure good
practice.

Via our Volunteering Wellbeing
Champions initiative (in partnership
with Inspiring Communities Together)
we ensured that we engaged with a
range of BME communities to promote
volunteering opportunities, which led to
us recruiting, training and placing
volunteers from some of Salford’s
newer communities.
This year at our VCSE Annual
Conference on the 5th July we held a
workshop on ‘21st Century
Volunteers’, which focused on
adapting roles for today’s volunteers.
This interactive session explained what
micro-volunteering is and the benefits
of including shorter-term opportunities
for those that have less time to spend
on volunteering.

We do this by hosting quarterly
Volunteer Co-ordinators’ Forums for
practitioners that focus on good
practice; supporting organisations with
policies and procedures, including role
descriptions; safeguarding, DBS
training and advice; legal liabilities and
insurance; equalities good practice;
outreach activities; 1-to-1 support;
volunteer manager recognition;
volunteering newsletters; publicity and
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promotion; and training. We also
annually update our comprehensive
Volunteering Good Practice Handbook,
available to download for free via our
website.

volunteer recruitment, which focused
on key challenges such as:





Building your profile
How to make your opportunities
attractive to a diverse range of
volunteers
Promoting your volunteer roles
Creating an effective and safe
recruitment process

Feedback included:

“I feel much better
equipped to understand
targeted recruitment and
general recruitment and
feel more confident with
the legal and
administrative processes”

149

“It has given me lots of
practical ideas to put into
use”

Organisations provided with
good-practice support
Volunteer Managers Day took place on
5th November and we asked some of
our organisations to tell us their top
tips for managing volunteers. We then
shared these throughout the day on
social media to raise awareness of
Volunteer Managers and to showcase
the good practice of Salford
organisations.

Heart of Salford Awards
The Heart of Salford Awards are
Salford CVS and Volunteer Centre’s
prestigious annual ceremony to
celebrate volunteering and voluntary
action in Salford. Established in 2003,
the awards are a firm favourite in the
Salford calendar.
The purpose of the awards is to
acknowledge the vast contribution
made by volunteers and voluntary
organisations in Salford to the life of
the city.

We also ran a one-day training course
for volunteer managers on effective
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Two of the award winners said:

Christine Barker, winner of
The Alan Henning Community
Volunteer Award.

“Winning Social Enterprise
of the Year at the Heart of
Salford awards is an
incredible achievement for
the whole team! We were
up against some amazing
organisations and would
have been happy to be
shortlisted amongst them,
to have walked away
winner was truly
overwhelming! Since
winning the award we have
seen an increase in new
sales enquiries and sense
of pride from everyone in
business. We would like to
thank everyone who voted
for us.”

This year’s awards ceremony once
again took place at the AJ Bell
Stadium and was our biggest-ever!
More than 350 people attended to
celebrate the achievements of
volunteers and VCSE organisations
and the difference they are making in
our city.
Feedback from the day included:

“Fantastic to see so many
community groups active
within Salford and learn
about the work going on by
so many”
“The opportunity to
celebrate the amazing
work done throughout
Salford. The diversity and
incredible volunteering
recognition”

HM Pasties
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Strategic work
Salford CVS and Volunteer Centre
continue to play a key strategic role in
promoting and developing volunteering
in the city, with our Chief Executive cochairing the Volunteering Strategic
Partnership, which oversees the
delivery of the Salford Volunteering
Strategy 2017-2022.

“Winning the Heart of
Salford Equalities Award
means so much to us. We
are so proud to live in
Salford and work around
the year sparking
conversations, projects and
actions with various
communities. We are so
passionate about using our
platform to highlight the
importance of equality,
equity, understanding and
acceptance. We do this
because we believe that
the arts has a central role
in change. This award has
given us a boost to keep
fighting for a more equal
society. Thank you.”

This year also saw us help with the
development of the City Mayor’s new
Spirit of Salford awards, by being part
of the core planning group for the
awards and sharing our experience of
running similar events, acting as panel
members for the Small Community
Group and Volunteer of the Year
categories, and helping on the night
itself. The awards took place in March
at the AJ Bell Stadium and were a
fantastic celebration of the Spirit of
Salford.
Salford CVS and Volunteer Centre
continued to promote the Salford
Social Value Alliance’s ‘10% Better’
campaign target of 10% More
Volunteering in Salford via our
communication networks, outreach
activities and facilitating volunteering
opportunities.

Art with Heart

In 2018, Salford CVS was honoured to
be chosen as the Greater Manchester
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Chamber of Commerce’s Charity
Partner for Salford.

bespoke online database that links
groups, employee volunteers and
employers. We have also worked with
VCSE groups to create short-term,
meaningful volunteering opportunities
that are designed to make a lasting
difference.
We have encouraged employers to
recognise that there is a difference
between employer-supported
volunteering and team building days
and to see the benefits of employees
sharing the skills that they have and
the positive impact that can have on
groups the employees themselves.

Throughout the year, we attended their
networking events and promoted
volunteering and the ‘10% Better’
campaign to its attendees.
As part of our strategic work around
volunteering, we remain keen to
promote and enable good EmployerSupported Volunteering (ESV) to take
place in Salford.
Examples of this during the year
included:

Skill Givers
Skill Givers is a partnership project
delivered by Macc and Salford CVS,
funded by Sport England. The project
focusses on doing employer-supported
volunteering differently, matching
support the VCSE community really
want and need, with skills available
from employees involved. In the first
year of the project we have designed a

24 Hours to Make a Difference
scheme with Salford City
Council
During the year we worked with
Salford City Council to develop a new
ESV initiative called “24 Hours to Make
a Difference”, which aims to enable
Salford Council’s staff to volunteer 24
hours of their paid work time with a
Salford VCSE organisation registered
on our volunteering portal.
At the launch event we were joined by
other organisations including
ChildLine, Citizen’s Advice, Kidscan
and Narrowgate City Mission.
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team and they valued hearing more
about the developments on the site
and the opportunities to link in on a
personal or professional level.

Development Plans
2019/20
Plans for the forthcoming year include:
Working with the Young Mayor of
Salford and other young people to
further develop volunteering
opportunities for young people aged
16-25 in the city;

ESV at RHS Garden
Bridgewater

Continuing to roll-out our ESV
schemes, including Skill Givers and 24
Hours to Make a Difference;

During 2018/19 we continued to work
with colleagues at the new RHS
Garden Bridgewater to promote and
develop volunteering opportunities.
This included facilitating an ESV day
for Salford City Council’s Public Health
team. They were keen on getting
involved in the new developments at
RHS Bridgewater and volunteered for
a day helping to clear the site.

Developing a ‘Health Check’ system
for volunteer-involving organisations;
Supporting our sector by delivering a
range of training and good practice
opportunities;
Delivering the volunteering elements of
the Community Assets and Wellbeing
Matters programmes of work;

Feedback from the day was very
positive, the staff said they enjoyed
working alongside people from their

Organising our 17th Heart of Salford
awards!

35

Salford Community and Voluntary Services
Trustees’ report for the year ended 31 March 2019

Our Grants and
Investments
In total during 2018/19 £1.137 million
in grants and investments was
distributed by Salford CVS across
Salford and beyond to support
communities to improve their health
and wellbeing.

CVS ran a small investments fund to
support the Big Alcohol Conversation
across GM. This fund was set up to
support community-based
organisations to engage with their
members, beneficiaries and networks
through the completion of surveys,
1-to-1 conversations and focus groups.

New developments
During 2018/19 Salford CVS’ grants
and investment programme saw
significant growth with major new
funds coming on stream. These
complemented our Third Sector Fund
delivered in partnership with NHS
Salford CCG. Our reputation at cityregion level for effective grants
management meant we were able to
secure a three-year agreement with
Greater Manchester Mental Health
Trust to deliver their drug and alcohol
recovery grants under the Achieve
contract for Bolton, Salford and
Trafford.

In November 2018, Salford CVS
achieved Living Wage Foundation
accreditation under their ‘Living Wage
Friendly Funder’ initiative, joining a
host of major grant-giving
organisations such as Comic Relief,
the Joseph Rowntree Foundation and
the People's Health Trust. This
demonstrates recognition by the Living
Wage Foundation of Salford CVS
proactively supporting decently paid
jobs. This is part of the work Salford
CVS is delivering as part of the Salford
Social Value Alliance’s ‘10% Better’
campaign, which has a target of having
‘at least 1,570 more Salford residents
paid the Living Wage Foundation ‘real’
Living Wage by 2021’.

Also this year, 10GM (of which Salford
CVS is a member) and GMCVO jointly
bid to Greater Manchester Health and
Social Care Partnership to deliver a
piece of community engagement work
around their ‘Big Alcohol Conversation’
campaign. As part of this work Salford
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Third Sector Fund

expansion in our reach to include 31%
of funded groups being new to Salford
CVS.

In April 2017, Salford CVS entered into
a three-year agreement with NHS
Salford CCG to deliver a grants
programme to complement the aims of
Salford’s Locality Plan to improve local
people’s health and wellbeing. This
would see an investment of £3 million
over the period.

A newly-embedded evaluation system
developed with our external evaluation
partners CLES (Centre for Local
Economic Strategies) and Voluntary
Sector North-West (VSNW) has
enabled the tracking of ‘distance
travelled’ across 17 ‘impact indicators’
giving the clearest indication yet of
how our grants are helping groups
improve the lives of local people. This
represents a financial return on
investment of £1: £17.74.

During 2018/19, the second year of the
agreement, the Third Sector Fund
grants programme has matured,
receiving considerable recognition in
the sector as a highly valued source of
support to enable delivery. Over the
year, 196 grant awards were made
through this fund to VCSE
organisations and primary schools
across Salford.

“This represents an
exceptionally strong return
on investment for healthrelated outcomes and
demonstrates the clear
benefits of NHS Salford
CCG’s approach to
addressing the inequalities
in health outcomes by
investing in the VCSE
sector via Salford CVS.”
CLES evaluation report, September
2019
CLES’ annual evaluation of the Third
Sector Fund during 2018/19 also
demonstrates the return on investment
for Salford in terms of added social
value. For every £1 invested a return
of £12.13 was identified. For an
overview of the impact of the fund,
check out our #SalfordStories video:

The flexibility of the fund enabled us to
match some monies with additional
funding from RHS Bridgewater to
create the Grow Well Fund to support
new, or expand existing, community
growing projects that promote
wellbeing.
This year, in response to feedback
from some of our micro and small
groups, a streamlined application
process was adopted, combined with a
pitch-to-panel approach, for our
Wellbeing Fund. This contributed to an

bit.ly/2m0i8Pd
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Four large (up to £50k) and six small
grants (up to £10k) were awarded
during 2018/19 to assist Salford in
meeting priorities outlined in the
national ‘5 Year Forward View for
Mental Health’ and in line with the new
Salford All-Age Mental Health
Strategy.

“One person who came on
our class suffered from
high blood pressure. She’s
lost eight stone, and no
longer suffers from sleep
apnoea”

In late 2018, the city of Salford was
chosen as one of four national Living
Well pilots to apply learning from the
borough of Lambeth in delivering
integrated mental health services on
neighbourhood footprints. The Living
Well model is now the driving force for
mental health transformation in
Salford, which this fund will
complement.

Feedback from GMCR Runners,
supported by a Wellbeing Fund
small grant

Achieve Asset Fund to
support drug and alcohol
recovery
In 2018 Salford CVS became part of
the Achieve consortium of local
providers, headed by Greater
Manchester Mental Health (GMMH)
Foundation Trust, which secured a
three-year contract to deliver drug and
alcohol recovery services across
Bolton, Salford and Trafford.

See the great video from 12th Swinton
Scouts Group showing how they used
a Wellbeing Grant to help refurbish
their climbing wall:

Salford CVS’ role is to administer an
annual asset fund worth c. £150,000
across the three boroughs aimed at
supporting user-led groups and small
VCSE sector organisations to deliver
activities to support those in recovery
from drug and alcohol addiction.
Salford CVS is working in partnership
with Bolton CVS and Voluntary and
Community Action Trafford (VCAT) to
ensure the fund is effectively promoted
and applicants supported in shaping
their bids.

bit.ly/2mOMvse
Emotional Wellbeing and
Mental Health Fund
GM Health Transformation monies
received by Salford CCG for the period
2018-21 were allocated exclusively for
investing into the VCSE sector and
administered by Salford CVS. This
represents a significant investment of
£900,000 over the three year period.

38

Salford Community and Voluntary Services
Trustees’ Report for the year ended 31 March 2019

Salford CVS has continued
administering grassroots investments
across the Weaste / Seedley,
Broughton and Langworthy areas of
Salford during the year, as part of the
Salford Ambition for Ageing
programme of work, with partners Age
UK Salford (lead partner) and Inspiring
Communities Together.
All the investments fund activities to
enhance the quality of life of older
residents. This work in Salford forms
part of Greater Manchester’s
£10million Ambition for Ageing
programme, funded by the Big Lottery.

“Recovery isn't just about
the substances. It's about
becoming more
comfortable with yourself.
It's about growing and
trying new things. It took
me 6 months but I finally
sang on my own, which I
haven't done since I was a
teenager. I've watched
regulars overcome
powerful social anxiety in
this trusting space, and
seen newcomers applauded
for their recovery
announcements. Wow. THIS
is community at its best.”

Hate Crime Awareness Week
Utilising GM Policing and Crime
monies, Salford City Council once
again commissioned Salford CVS to
administer a small grants allocation
process to:

Attendee of Poison Apple Theatre’s
Dry Open Mic Nights



See Poison Apple Theatre’s video
highlighting how their Dry Open Mic
Nights are supporting people in
recovery:



bit.ly/2mVhimW
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raising awareness of and
encouraging the reporting of hate
crime incidents; and
Celebrate diversity during Hate
Crime Awareness Week
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“Our son has never been
able to attend a day camp
before. His one-to-one
carer was a perfect match,
I have never seen our son
so happy when I picked him
up at the end of a day. He
didn’t stop talking about all
the different experiences
he had, many he has never
been able to access before
due to his disabilities.”

11 projects were supported with small
grants; representing refugee, LBGT
and disability groups, as well as
organisations serving geographic
communities throughout Salford.

“I think there should be
more of this kind of thing to
highlight issues... I have
suffered and still do suffer
from hate incidents, due to
my obvious disability.
People need to hear it and
be more accepting.”

Feedback from a parent whose
child attended Lubavitch Day
Camp.

Participant in Salford City Radio’s
HCAW broadcast project.

Greater Manchester Big
Alcohol Conversation

See the video produced by Salford
Red Devils Foundation shown at rugby
matches and across social media:

In 2018 Salford CVS administered a
small investment programme on behalf
of 10GM (joint venture between the
CVS’ of Greater Manchester) and
GMCVO to support VCSE
organisations to engage with local
communities in order to gain
understanding of the perceptions of
alcohol’s impact on personal health
and communities across Greater
Manchester.

bit.ly/2nv3Vuc
Short Break Care for children
with disabilities
Salford CVS has this year built upon
the management of grants awarded to
VCSE organisations providing sport,
arts and IT activities for children with
disabilities. This forms part of Salford
City Council’s offer to families to
provide short-term respite from caring
duties through the provision of safe
and entertaining activities for children
with disabilities.

In total 68 groups received
investments to undertake surveys and
1-to-1 conversations with local people.
This yielded more than 3,500 individual
responses. Twenty focus groups were
also facilitated across the 10 local
authority areas. Funded by Greater
Manchester Health and Social Care
Partnership, the findings will be used
to inform policy and practice across the
city region.
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As part of the GM Moving work Salford
CVS will be working with partners to
deliver Greater Sport’s Local Delivery
Pilot. Our role will be to provide small
investments support to groups in order
to boost physical activity for girls and
young women aged 5-18 in out-ofschool settings. This will be backed by
a new 0.6 FTE post to support VCSE
engagement and project development.
In additional to our role as lead partner
and accountable body for Answer
Cancer (a VCSE-led Greater
Manchester Screening Engagement
programme), Salford CVS will be
administering a small investments
programme for VCSE organisations
across the city-region. These will target
BME communities, wider equalities
groups and particular localities as part
of the wider programme to increase
cancer screening rates amongst
under-represented groups. Our
partners in this programme are 10GM,
VSNW, BHA for Equality and Unique
Improvements.

“Great initiative to engage
with the wider community
on this issue, not only those
affected by alcohol. It is a
problem which affects all
of us.”
VCSE organisation participating in
the ‘Big Alcohol Conversation’

Development Plans
2019/20

Also in 2019/20 the GM History
Makers initiative will see us work with
our 10GM partners and VSNW to
make small investments to support the
creation of smoke-free spaces and
recruit champions to promote smoking
cessation.

For 2019/20 the Third Sector Fund has
earmarked monies to support
emerging local priorities including
Living Well with Dementia, a new
Youth Wellbeing Fund and a Healthy
Holidays Fund to help address the
issue of holiday hunger amongst
school-age children. The Grow Well
Fund will also be continued with
confirmed match funding from RHS
Garden Bridgewater.
The forthcoming year also promises to
be another period of growth for Salford
CVS’ grants programme.

41

Salford Community and Voluntary Services
Trustees’ Report for the year ended 31 March 2019

Wider Partnership
Initiatives
Volunteering Wellbeing
Champions

46% of our volunteers identified as
belonging to BME communities, with
45% of them falling in the 31-60 age
bracket.

During 2018/19, we continued to
deliver the Volunteering Wellbeing
Champions project, as part of the city’s
Community Assets work strand led by
Inspiring Communities Together (ICT).
We have worked closely with a range
of partners as part of this work,
including lead partner ICT, Age UK
Salford, Salford Community Leisure,
Salford Third Sector Consortium and
Trading Standards.

All volunteers received a thank you
certificate, as always, and in addition
five volunteers received Volunteer
Centre Salford 200 hours of
volunteering certificates, six received
100 hours certificates and 15 received
50 hours certificates.
Together the team of staff and
volunteers working on this programme
completed 437 wellbeing
conversations with local people, many
of whom were unemployed / living
alone / managing a long-term
condition. Wellbeing conversations are
person-centred and provide a
consistent but flexible structure for
connecting people to local community
assets.

2,870
Hours of volunteering
In 2017-18, we had 211 local
volunteers involved in supporting
initiatives such as Tech and Tea,
Postural Stability, Scams, Care Homes
and Community Outreach (170 in
2017/18), undertaking a massive 2,870
hours of volunteering – up on the
2017/18 figure of 1,929.

The team also participated in 13
events across the city, ran four focus
groups, nine training sessions
(including induction sessions for new
volunteers) and trained 40 staff from
frontline organisations from across the
city in how to have a wellbeing
conversation.
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“I feel quite privileged to
be a part of these people’s
lives even if it’s only for an
hour and a half a week.
They are just such lovely
people and the majority of
them are in their eighties or
nineties. It’s just
unfortunate that they’ve
had a stroke or have
mobility or degenerative
issues. It’s a case of trying
to keep them active.

When I first started
volunteering I shadowed a
class with another
volunteer. I asked her what
are my responsibilities and
what do I need to do. She
said ‘just enjoy it’. This is
the advice that I would give
to any new volunteer - just
get involved and enjoy it.

Talking to individuals, even
if it’s for 5 minutes, can
make them feel important
and cared for. It makes a
big difference.”
For the participants, if they
can get involved in things it
helps them to feel
connected. I have tried to
suggest other activities
that people can get
involved in. I keep myself
informed when I go to
Swinton Gateway and look
at the noticeboards and
leaflet racks. I do signpost
people to Tech and Tea.
That’s great for people
who are socially isolated.

Volunteer Wellbeing Champion
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Wellbeing Matters

action at both a strategic, city-wide
level, and on a neighbourhood basis.

Wellbeing Matters is a two-year VCSEled programme of work that
commenced in April 2018. It is funded
by the Greater Manchester Health and
Social Care Partnership’s
Transformation Fund, forming part of
the Population Health Plan for Salford.

The third workstream focuses on
embedding a social and added value
approach, which includes supporting
the Salford Social Value Alliance’s
‘10% Better’ campaign.
Salford CVS is the lead partner and
accountable body for the work, with
Salford Third Sector Consortium the
delivery partner for workstream one.

The programme’s overarching aim is to
test a system change within Salford
through creating a new infrastructure
which effectively links statutory health
care to VCSE provision and activities
(both commissioned and noncommissioned) in order to improve
citizen wellbeing and work towards
embedding person and communitycentred approaches within the health
and social care system.

During the year, we collectively began
the process of recruiting a team of 13
staff to work on the programme.
Salford CVS employed the Programme
Manager, Social Value Development
Worker and the five Volunteering
Development Workers (including two
matched in from the Volunteer
Wellbeing Champions work). Salford
Third Sector Consortium appointed the
Big Life Group to host the Social
Prescribing Co-ordinator, alongside
five VCSE Neighbourhood Anchor
organisations: Langworthy
Cornerstone (Ordsall & Claremont);
Inspiring Communities Together
(Swinton); Social adVentures
(Broughton); Unlimited Potential
(Eccles & Irlam) and Start (Little Hulton
& Walkden), each of whom then
employed a Community Connector.

Wellbeing Matters has two broad
goals:
1. To contribute to improving the health
and wider wellbeing of Salford
residents through the use of person
and community-centred approaches,
including the creation of an
overarching social prescribing model
for Salford
2. To help reduce inappropriate
demand on costly areas of health
provision in Salford

The University of Salford were
appointed as the programme’s external
evaluation partner and Elemental were
chosen as our data software partner.
Once recruitment was largely complete
work then commenced on building and
training a staff team, developing
systems and processes, producing
marketing and communications
materials, and starting to engage with
GPs practices and the wider
neighbourhood teams and emerging
forums. The social prescribing service
went ‘live’ in December 2018.

In order to be able to deliver this
ambition we have created three distinct
workstreams:
The first workstream’s focus is to
work with the statutory health and care
sector to create and test a holistic,
consistent social prescribing approach
across Salford, whilst operating on a
neighbourhood footprint.
The second workstream focuses on
capacity building the VCSE ecosystem
through volunteering and voluntary
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Development Plans 2019/20

GM Cancer Screening
Engagement

The Programme Manager’s main focus
in 2019/20 will be on (a) developing
strategic relationships with VCSE
partners, the health and care system
and key leaders; and (b) the delivery of
the programme, ensuring all systems
and processes are in place;
monitoring, evaluating and reporting is
undertaken; and we are able to
demonstrate the impact of this work.

In late 2018 Salford CVS and our
10GM colleagues joined forces with
Voluntary Sector North-West (VSNW),
BHA for Equality and Unique
Improvements to respond to a tender
opportunity issued by Greater
Manchester Health and Social Care
Partnership. The tender invited
organisations to bid to build upon
previous GM work around cancer
screening and engagement, including
the GM Cancer Champions social
movement, and to create a programme
of work that would increase the uptake
of cervical, breast and bowel screening
across Greater Manchester,
particularly in those geographical
areas and within specific communities
where take-up was low.
In January 2019, we discovered our
tender response had been successful
and that we had won a 3+1 year
contract, to commence on 1st April
2019.

The Social Prescribing Coordinator’s
key focus will be on developing
relationships with and signing up all
GP practices in Salford to act as
referral routes for social prescribing,
alongside co-ordinating the team of
Community Connectors.

Salford CVS are the lead partner and
accountable body for this work. This
includes us recruiting a new
Programme Manager to manage the
programme, which will utilise VCSE
sector expertise, build upon public
health experience and, most
importantly, work with communities
and target areas across Greater
Manchester that are often poorly
served and experience
disproportionate health inequalities.

The Community Connectors’ focus will
be to act as ‘link workers’, spending
time having wellbeing conversations
with the people referred, then helping
them to access groups and activities in
their neighbourhoods as appropriate.
The Volunteering Development
Workers will focus on developing the
VCSE eco-system in neighbourhoods
in order to build the capacity and
appetite for social prescribing referrals.
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We are aiming to reduce the stigma
and mythology surrounding cancer,
cancer screening and prevention and
equip our communities with the
knowledge that early detection is early
protection. We will provide awarenessraising, engagement, training and
signposting about bowel, breast and
cervical cancer screening programmes
as well as enhancing and developing
the Greater Manchester Cancer
Champions social movement and
capacity-building local VCSE support
groups.

Salford Third Sector
Consortium

One of our first tasks will also be to
think of a snappier name for the
programme!

Members of Salford Third
Sector Consortium

During 2018/19, Salford CVS
continued to provide ‘the Hub’ function
support for Salford Third Sector
Consortium, an independent charitable
company with 85 member
organisations.

85
The purpose of the Consortium is to
win contracts for its members that they
might not be able to win on their own,
thus securing investment to enable
local VCSE organisations to deliver
high quality services to benefit local
people.
Hub duties undertaken by Salford CVS
included Board preparation and
support, financial management,
membership services, administration
and minute-taking.

Development plans 2019/20






In 2018/19, the Consortium
successfully delivered the third year of
the Tech and Tea project (part of the
city’s Community Assets programme),

Develop the new partnership
Recruit into new job roles across
partner organisations
Create branding and marketing
materials
Promote to public and VCSE
sectors and to GM communities
Go ‘live’ with the new programme
of work
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with Inspiring Communities Together
continuing as the lead partner for this
work.

on the development of Peel Park
Pavilion in Little Hulton; launching the
Little Hulton Pound (a local currency to
reward volunteering); extending the
Youth Unity activity; supporting local
social entrepreneurs such as Women
with Wings; and working with the LHBL
Board to apply for charitable status in
their own right.

During 2018/9 the Consortium took on
the role as delivery partner for
workstream one of the new Wellbeing
Matters programme, with six of its
members delivering the neighbourhood
social prescribing element of this work.

Development plans 2019/20
Salford CVS have been asked to
continue to provide the hub function for
the Consortium in 2019/20. Tech and
Tea has been recommissioned for
2019/20 and the Consortium will
continue to deliver the social
prescribing workstream of the
Wellbeing Matters programme.

Development plans 2019/20

Little Hulton Big Local

LHBL Partnership Board have
recommissioned Salford CVS to act as
their LTO in 2019/20. Priorities are to
secure charitable status and work with
Salford City Council on redevelopment plans for Peel Park
Pavilion with the intention of it being
the home of the new charity.

Salford CVS continued to be the
Locally Trusted Organisation (LTO) for
Little Hulton Big Local (LHBL) in
2018/19, with the Partnership Board of
LHBL re-appointing us for another
year.

Salford Social Value
Alliance

Duties undertaken by Salford CVS on
LHBL’s behalf included providing
strategic and operational support,
employing and managing three paid
staff (a part-time youth worker joined
the team in-year), financial
management, administration services,
acting as banker for their Big Local
investment and supporting their
Partnership Board.

The Salford Social Value Alliance is a
coalition of leaders who are passionate
about Salford and ensuring the best for
its citizens and who believe driving a
social value approach can help
achieve maximum social, economic
and environmental benefit for the city
and its people. Launched in 2015 and
endorsed by the City Mayor, current
membership includes Salford CVS,
Unlimited Potential, Salford City
Council, NHS Salford CCG, Salford
Community Leisure, ForHousing,
Carbon Creative, University of Salford
and others.

LHBL has a vision “To unite Little
Hulton as a community and to enhance
local people’s wellbeing” and has
access to £1m of Big Local (Big
Lottery) funds to invest in order to help
achieve its vision. During 2018/19 key
achievements included securing
funding to carry out a feasibility study
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MORE local people from vulnerable
groups accessing new jobs,
apprenticeships, training and work
experience placements
LESS fuel poverty
MORE purchasing from Salfordbased companies

During 2018/19, the Alliance continued
to be chaired by Alison Page, CEO of
Salford CVS, with administration also
being undertaken by CVS. The
Alliance meets three times a year, with
a core group meeting more frequently
to drive work forward.

During 2018/19, additional ‘10% Better’
pledges were made by Salford
organisations, with us ending the year
with a total of 64 ‘live’ pledges.
The Alliance held regular core group
meetings throughout the year
alongside well-attended events on
Volunteering; Making Use of Parks and
Green Spaces; Local Supply Chain.

Our main focus in year was the
prioritisation of the Salford ‘10% Better’
campaign, which aims to strengthen
city-wide commitment to social value
and to encourage organisations to use
social value to improve the lives of
people who live and work in Salford.

Further improvements were made to
the Alliance’s website:
salfordsocialvalue.org.uk and the
online Salford Social Value Toolkit was
also updated.

The campaign aims to achieve the
following changes in Salford by 2021:

We continued to support the Living
Wage Foundation’s campaign for a
real Living Wage during the year and
to participate in the Greater
Manchester Social Value Network
(GMSVN).

MORE volunteering
MORE young people who are in
employment, education and training
MORE Salford people saying that
they have good wellbeing
LESS waste – fuel, rubbish, energy,
water, etc.
MORE recycling
MORE green travel – walking,
cycling, buses, trams, trains, lift
shares, electric vehicles
MORE use of parks and green
spaces
MORE companies paying the Living
Wage Foundation accredited ‘real’
Living Wage

Development plans 2019/20:
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Review the progress of those
organisations who made pledges
in the previous year
To organise large Alliance events
on the themes of Wellbeing; Green
Travel; the ‘real’ Living Wage
Gather more case studies on
social value to feature on the
Alliance’s website
Core group members to analyse
their local spend across 10 areas
of purchasing
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Social Enterprise Places are areas
where social enterprise activity is
thriving. Salford’s status as a Social
Enterprise City was secured after a
steering group comprising local social
enterprises, Salford CVS and The
Business Group developed a plan to
convince SEUK of our credentials! We
were fortunate also to have the support
of Salford City Council and the
University of Salford.

Sign up more Salford anchor
organisations to make a 10%
Better pledge
Continue to participate in GMSVN
Get involved in the GM Good
Employment Charter work

This initial work included mapping
social enterprise activity in Salford,
agreeing some key objectives,
organising a briefing event and also a
public launch. We continue to
complete a social enterprise ‘census’
every year as part of our accredited
status and to attend twice yearly
national ‘places’ gatherings.

Salford Social Enterprise
City
Salford CVS exists to support all local
organisations that have social aims
and are not-for-private-profit, including
social enterprises such as community
interest companies, community benefit
societies and cooperatives. We are
pleased to work with lots of new, and
many existing, social enterprises in
Salford and believe social enterprise
can play an increasingly important role
in improving the lives of the people of
Salford. Social enterprise isn’t a legal
structure – it’s a way of doing good
business.

Salford Social Enterprise City has
three broad aims:





Social
Enterprises are
changing the
world a little
bit at a time.

Preserve and promote the
heritage of Salford’s social
businesses
Support existing social
enterprises to scale, replicate
and develop sustainable
business models
Encourage new social
enterprises, new models of
social business and new social
entrepreneurs

Salford CVS continues to jointly
administer Salford Social Enterprise
City activities alongside the Business
Group and in 2018/19 we collectively
organised a range of activities
including:

In May 2015, Salford was designated a
‘Social Enterprise Place’ by Social
Enterprise UK (SEUK) the national
trade body for social enterprise.

A national Social Enterprise Summit –
in April 2018 we were proud to work
with SEUK to bring all of the national
accredited ‘places’ together for an
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event at The Lowry, followed by a
networking dinner, which was attended
by many local strategic partners
alongside national ‘places’ delegates
and SEUK. We also organised a coach
tour of local social enterprises for the
national delegates. The next day we
held a full-day conference at the
University of Salford’s Media City
campus, with speakers including Claire
Dove, CEO of Liverpool social
enterprise Blackburne House and the
Crown Representative for the
Voluntary, Community and Social
Enterprise sector; Peter Holbrook,
CEO of Social Enterprise UK; and Jim
Taylor, Chief Executive of Salford City
Council; alongside a range of other
social enterprise leaders.

GM Social Enterprise Network
(GMSEN) – during the year Salford
CVS continued to represent Salford
Social Enterprise City at the GMSEN
meetings and at the November 2018
GM Social Enterprise Summit, which
featured Andy Burnham, Mayor of
Greater Manchester as the keynote
speaker.

Question Time: Should I Scale or
Should I Grow Now? – We ended the
year with a first! A ‘live link’ to
colleagues in Auckland, New Zealand
– also a social enterprise ‘place’ –
where a panel of social enterprises
from Salford and Auckland discussed
their social enterprise journeys and
answered questions from live
audiences in both places on growth,
scaling and replicating social
enterprises. The Salford panel was
chaired by Grace Dyke, Director at
Yellow Jigsaw, with panellists Paula
Maguire, co-founder of Cowherds
Juicery; Scott Darraugh, Chief
Executive of Social adVentures; and
Lucy Danger, founder and CEO of
Emerge Recycling. Auckland panellists
were Nigel Cottle, co-owner of Crave
Café and Dmitry Selitskiy, founder and
CEO of Thought-Wired social
enterprises.

Regular Salford Sups – these are
networking events where emerging
and established social enterprises and
their supporters come together to
network, socialise and pitch their
ideas, with the winner receiving a cash
prize. We even held one on the
Commonplace double-decker bus!
Quarterly business meetings – usually
held at the Star Inn, Salford’s
cooperative pub. 

51

Salford Community and Voluntary Services
Trustees’ Report for the year ended 31 March 2019

Throughout the year we also
supported SEUK’s national initiatives,
including Social Saturday and the Buy
Social campaign.

working and supporting social
enterprise, where we’ll be joined
by Peter Holbrook, CEO of
SEUK, alongside colleagues from
across the north-west.

Development plans 2019/20:


Alternatives; a roundtable for
social enterprise – in April 2019
we are organising a north-west
event to discuss new ways of
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Local, Social, Ethical – we are
planning to develop and publish a
booklet to showcase the work of
Salford social enterprises, with
the aim of contributing to Salford
and GM discussions about social
enterprise as part of industrial
strategy and inclusive economy
conversations.



We will also hold regular
business meetings, Salford Sup
events, and support national
initiatives such as SEUK’s
October ‘Buy Social for a Better
World’ campaign.
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Policies
Risk Management

expenditure, unrestricted income and,
where appropriate, restricted income
and where funds can only be realised
by the disposal of a fixed asset. Also
taken into consideration are any
external identified potential major risks
to income and expenditure during the
year under consideration.

The Trustees have assessed the major
risks to which the charity is exposed, in
particular those related to the
operations and finance of the charity,
and are satisfied that systems are in
place to mitigate their exposure to
major risks.

Investment Policy

The charity’s organisational Risk
Register is reviewed as per the agreed
Board work programme, with remedial
action taken as required.

The Board of Trustees have
considered the most appropriate policy
for investing funds, and has invested
£623k in the following fixed term
accounts, when the account matures
the funds are rolled over provided the
Trustees consider the interest rate is
acceptable: Bath Building Society
£88k, Co-operative Bank £86k, Charity
Bank £95k, Yorkshire Bank £91k,
National Counties Building Society
£88k, Cambridge and Counties £89k,
CAF Bank £86k. The balances of
funds are to be held in bank deposit
accounts. In addition, the funds
received from the Pennington bequest,
in investments, have been retained in
these investments which are managed
by Smith & Williamson Fund
Administration Limited on behalf of the
charity.

Reserves Policy
The Salford CVS reserves policy is to
maintain sufficient level of reserves to
enable normal activities to continue
over a period of up to six months
should a shortfall in income occur and
to take account of potential risks and
contingencies that may arise from time
to time. The required reserves to
achieve this is £466,028.
Excluded from the Reserves Policy are
funds associated with:
•
•

Programme-related
investments
Restricted funds

Therefore, in order to demonstrate
transparency, accountability and sound
financial management, the Salford
CVS Reserves Policy clearly justifies
the amount of reserves kept back each
year.

Grants
The company does not make
significant grants in its own capacity
but acts only in partnership with
various local and national government
departments and other strategic
partners (e.g. RHS) to administer the
distribution of grants to other local
charities and community organisations,
including primary schools. Distributions

Steps taken to establish the level of
reserve
In order to make a judgement on the
amount of reserve, the Trustees have
considered the risks in respect of
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are made in strict accordance with the
criteria set by the original funding body
and are included in the provision of
services when payable.

The company itself distributes
approximately £1,000 annually at its
AGM in the form of a ‘Pitch in Sixty
Seconds’ event for members.

Structure, governance and
management
The Trustees are responsible for the
strategic management and direction of
the organisation. The day-to-day
management is delegated to the Chief
Executive. During the year, the Board
met for two strategy meetings, seven
business meetings and once for
governance training.

re-appointed at the first meeting of the
Board after the AGM.
Trustees are inducted by the Chief
Executive / Deputy Chief Executive
and Chair and are provided with a
handbook outlining their
responsibilities. Trustees complete an
annual skills audit and are given
opportunities for training.

Members of the Board of Trustees are
elected by the membership at the
annual general meeting. Officers of the
Board of Trustees are appointed by the
Board at the following meeting.
Members of the Board serve for a
three-year term, whilst the officers are
appointed annually from the
membership of the Board of Trustees.
Additional members can be co-opted
to the Board until the next AGM.
Co-opted members can either stand
for election at the AGM or be

The organisation is affiliated to the
following organisations that provide
advice, guidance and support:






National Association for
Voluntary & Community Action
(NAVCA)
National Council for Voluntary
Organisations (NCVO)
Social Enterprise UK (SEUK)
Charity Finance Group (CFG)
Greater Manchester Centre for
Voluntary Organisation
(GMCVO)

Financial Review
During the year, the charity had a
surplus of £115,414 on unrestricted
income.

funding from the NHS Salford CCG
supported Third Sector Fund, which is
yet to be allocated to the third sector as
grants. This surplus will be utilised in
the forthcoming year.

The surplus on restricted funds of
£408,830 is mainly due to the timing of
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Funds held as a custodian
As at 31st March 2019 Salford CVS acted as custodian for the following
organisations:
Salford Capacity Building

£6,282

Salford Women’s Centre

£400

Busy Bees

African Family Support

£820

IWD Celebrations

£80

Joint Veterans Alliance CIC

£49

Interfaith Network

Working in Wood

£4,744

Ellesmere Park Tenants

£283

Little Hulton Youth Unity

Anyone for Tennis

£776

Life Begins at 90

Proud of Patricroft

£500

Little Hulton Big Local

Salford Veterans Breakfast
Club

£5,402

Friendly Recycling Group

Beating Winter Blues

£2,000

Onwards & Upwards

Cards, Crafts & More

£472

Edward Onyon
Lower Kersal Young
People’s Group
Lawler Residents

ICY Project

£1,810
£42

£1,143
£741

£6,530
£140
£4,596
£799
£2
£201

Greenspace Urban Place

£2,000

Roman Revellers Court

£1,083

£167

House of Tabner

£175

Festival of Ageing Weaste

£2,000

Salford Together

£30,000

Festival of Ageing
Broughton
Festival of Ageing
Langworthy
Big Local Craft Group

£2,000

Teenage Autism Group

£2,000

Weaste Social

£412

Mad Pride Event

£198

Life Centre

£2,000

Pride on the Range

£200

Marina Gardeners

£1,320

Time Bank

£362

St Luke’s Craft Group

£533

£2,128

£577

Funds are held by Salford CVS as custodian for organisations that do not have
access to bank accounts or that wish Salford CVS to act as their banker. The funds
were received and placed within the accounts as current liabilities. Details of
custodian funds are reported to the Board on a quarterly basis.
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Statement of Trustees
Responsibilities


The Trustees (who are the directors of
Salford Community and Voluntary
Services for the purposes of company
law) are responsible for preparing the
Report of the Trustees and the
financial statements in accordance
with applicable law and United
Kingdom Accounting Standards
(United Kingdom Generally Accepted
Practice).

The Trustees are responsible for
keeping proper accounting records that
disclose with reasonable accuracy at
any time the financial position of the
charitable company and to enable
them to ensure that the financial
statements comply with the
Companies Act 2006. They are also
responsible for safeguarding the
assets of the charitable company and
hence for taking reasonable steps for
the prevention and detection of fraud
and other irregularities.

Company law requires the Trustees to
prepare financial statements for each
financial year that give a true and fair
view of the state of affairs of the
charitable company and of the
incoming resources and application of
resources, including the income and
expenditure, of the charitable company
for the period. In preparing those
financial statements, the Trustees are
required to





prepare the financial statements on
the going concern basis unless it is
inappropriate to presume that the
charitable company will continue in
business.

In so far as the Trustees are aware:
 there is no relevant audit information
of which the charitable company’s
auditors are unaware; and
 the Trustees have taken all steps
that they ought to have taken to
make themselves aware of any
relevant audit information and to
establish that the auditors are aware
of that information.

select suitable accounting policies
and then apply them consistently;
observe the methods and principles
in the Charities Statement of
Recommended Practice (SORP);
make judgements and estimates
that are reasonable and prudent;

Auditors
Wyatt, Morris, Golland Ltd, Chartered
Accountants, have intimated their
willingness to continue in office as
auditors to the company and will be
proposed for re-appointment.

of part 15 of the Companies Act 2006
relating to small companies.

The above report has been prepared in
accordance with the special provisions

Chris Fox (Chair)
Approved by the Trustees: 8th October
2019

Signed on behalf of the Trustees
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Report of the Independent Auditors to the
Trustees of Salford Community and Voluntary
Services for the year ended 31 March 2019

Opinion
We have audited the financial
statements of Salford Community and
Voluntary Services (the 'charitable
company') for the year ended
31 March 2019 which comprise the
Statement of Financial Activities, the
Balance Sheet, the Cash Flow
Statement and notes to the financial
statements, including a summary of
significant accounting policies. The
financial reporting framework that has
been applied in their preparation is
applicable law and United Kingdom
Accounting Standards (United
Kingdom Generally Accepted
Accounting Practice).

In our opinion the financial statements:
 give a true and fair view of the state
of the charitable company's affairs
as at 31 March 2019 and of its
incoming resources and application
of resources, including its income
and expenditure, for the year then
ended;
 have been properly prepared in
accordance with United Kingdom
Generally Accepted Accounting
Practice; and
 have been prepared in accordance
with the requirements of the
Companies Act 2006.

Basis for opinion
We conducted our audit in accordance
with International Standards on
Auditing (UK) (ISAs (UK)) and
applicable law. Our responsibilities
under those standards are further
described in the Auditors
responsibilities for the audit of the
financial statements section of our
report. We are independent of the
charitable company in accordance with
the ethical requirements that are

relevant to our audit of the financial
statements in the UK, including the
Financial Reporting Council's Ethical
Standard, and we have fulfilled our
other ethical responsibilities in
accordance with these requirements.
We believe that the audit evidence we
have obtained is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our
opinion.
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Conclusions relating to going
concern
We have nothing to report in respect of
the following matters in relation to
which the ISAs (UK) require us to
report to you where:




statements any identified
material uncertainties that
may cast significant doubt
about the charitable
company's ability to continue
to adopt the going concern
basis of accounting for a
period of at least twelve
months from the date when
the financial statements are
authorised for issue.

the Trustees' use of the going
concern basis of accounting
in the preparation of the
financial statements is not
appropriate; or
the Trustees have not
disclosed in the financial

Other information
The Trustees are responsible for the
other information. The other
information comprises the information
included in the annual report, other
than the financial statements and our
Report of the Independent Auditors
thereon.

is to read the other information and, in
doing so, consider whether the other
information is materially inconsistent
with the financial statements or our
knowledge obtained in the audit or
otherwise appears to be materially
misstated. If, based on the work we
have performed, we conclude that
there is a material misstatement of this
other information, we are required to
report that fact. We have nothing to
report in this regard.

Our opinion on the financial statements
does not cover the other information
and we do not express any form of
assurance conclusion thereon.
In connection with our audit of the
financial statements, our responsibility
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Matters on which we are
required to report by
exception


We have nothing to report in respect of
the following matters where the
Charities Act 2011 requires us to
report to you if, in our opinion:




the information given in the
Report of the Trustees is
inconsistent in any material
respect with the financial
statements; or



the charitable company has
not kept adequate accounting
records; or
the financial statements are
not in agreement with the
accounting records and
returns; or
we have not received all the
information and explanations
we require for our audit.

Responsibilities of Trustees
As explained more fully in the
Statement of Trustees Responsibilities,
the Trustees (who are also the
directors of the charitable company for
the purposes of company law) are
responsible for the preparation of the
financial statements and for being
satisfied that they give a true and fair
view, and for such internal control as
the Trustees determine is necessary to
enable the preparation of financial
statements that are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or
error.

In preparing the financial statements,
the Trustees are responsible for
assessing the charitable company's
ability to continue as a going concern,
disclosing, as applicable, matters
related to going concern and using the
going concern basis of accounting
unless the Trustees either intend to
liquidate the charitable company or to
cease operations, or have no realistic
alternative but to do so.
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Our responsibilities for the
audit of the financial
statements
Our objectives are to obtain
reasonable assurance about whether
the financial statements as a whole are
free from material misstatement,
whether due to fraud or error, and to
issue a Report of the Independent
Auditors that includes our opinion.
Reasonable assurance is a high level
of assurance, but is not a guarantee
that an audit conducted in accordance
with ISAs (UK) will always detect a
material misstatement when it exists.
Misstatements can arise from fraud or
error and are considered material if,

individually or in the aggregate, they
could reasonably be expected to
influence the economic decisions of
users taken on the basis of these
financial statements.
A further description of our
responsibilities for the audit of the
financial statements is located on the
Financial Reporting Council's website
at
www.frc.org.uk/auditorsresponsibili
ties. This description forms part of our
Report of the Independent Auditors.

Use of our report
This report is made solely to the
charitable company's Trustees, as a
body, in accordance with Section 144
of the Charities Act 2011 and
regulations made under Section 154 of
that Act. Our audit work has been
undertaken so that we might state to
the charitable company's Trustees
those matters we are required to state
to them in an auditors' report and for
no other purpose. To the fullest extent
permitted by law, we do not accept or
assume responsibility to anyone other
than the charitable company and the
charitable company's Trustees as a
body, for our audit work, for this report,
or for the opinions we have formed.

Wyatt, Morris, Golland Ltd
Statutory Auditors
Eligible to act as an auditor in terms
of Section 1212 of the Companies
Act 2006
Park House
200 Drake Street
Rochdale
Lancashire
OL16 1PJ

Date: 8th October 2019
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Statement of financial activities
(incorporating an income and expenditure account) for
the year ended 31 March 2019
Notes

Unrestricted
funds

Restricted
funds

Total funds
2019

Total funds
2018

________________________

__________________________________

__________________________________

__________________________________

__________________________________

£

£

£

£

22,218

2,921,779

2,943,997

1,859,452

601

5,812

5,578

2,461

26,462

27,847

Income and expenditure
Incoming resources:
Voluntary income

3

Investment Income:
Bank and
building society
5,211
income
Income from charitable activities:
Charitable
4
24,001
trading
60,019
Other income
5
111,449
Total income
6
Resources expended
Charitable
7-8
(182,661)
activities
Total expenditure
(182,661)
__________________________________

__________________________________

2,193
2,927,034

__________________________________

62,212
3,038,483

__________________________________

__________________________________

__________________________________

__________________________________

__________________________________

(2,330,575)

(2,513,236)

(1,879,416)

______________________________________

_____________________________________

______________________________________

________________________________

Net incoming /
(outgoing)
resources
before transfers
Unrealised loss
14
on investments
Transfers
11
between funds
Movement in
funds
Reconciliation of funds
Fund balance
brought forward
Fund balance
carried forward

86,705
1,979,582

(2,330,575)

(2,513,236)

(1,879,416)

________________________________

______________________________________

______________________________________

______________________________________

(71,212)

596,459

525,247

100,166

(1,003)

-

(1,003)

-

187,629

(187,629)

-

-

__________________________________

__________________________________

__________________________________

__________________________________

115,414

408,830

524,244

100,166

465,595

492,547

958,142

857,976

____________________________

____________________________

____________________________

____________________________

581,009
=======

901,377
=======

1,482,386
=======

958,142
=======

The statement of financial activities includes all gains and losses recognised in the year.
All incoming resources and resources expended derive from continuing activities.
THE NOTES ON PAGES 65 TO 87 FORM PART OF THESE ACCOUNTS.
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Balance sheet
as at 31 March 2019
Notes
__________________________________

2019
£

__________________________________

£

2018
£

__________________________________

£

Fixed Assets
Tangible assets

13

Investments

14

Current Assets
Debtors
Cash at bank and
in hand
Creditors
Amounts falling
due within one
year
Net current
assets

15

9,068

5,408

12,913

20,915

__________________________________

__________________________________

21,981

26,323

364,226

113,130

2,517,322

2,038,648

__________________________________

__________________________________

2,881,548

2,151,778

16 (1,421,143)

(1,219,959)

__________________________________

Total assets less
current liabilities

__________________________________

1,460,405

931,819

__________________________________

__________________________________

1,482,386

958,142

__________________________________

__________________________________

17

1,482,386
=======

958,142
=======

Restricted funds

18

901,377

492,547

Unrestricted funds

19

Net assets
Funds

581,009

465,595

__________________________________

__________________________________

1,482,386
=======

958,142
=======

The charitable company is entitled to exemption from audit under Section 477 of the
Companies Act 2006 for the year ended 31 March 2019.
The members have not deposited notice, pursuant to Section 476 of the Companies
Act 2006 requiring an audit of these financial statements.
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The Trustees acknowledge their responsibilities for
a)
b)

ensuring that the charitable company keeps accounting records that comply
with Sections 386 and 387 of the Companies Act 2006 and
preparing financial statements which give a true and fair view of the state of
affairs of the charitable company as at the end of each financial year and of
its surplus or deficit for each financial year in accordance with the
requirements of Sections 394 and 395 and which otherwise comply with the
requirements of the Companies Act 2006 relating to financial statements, so
far as applicable to the charitable company.

These financial statements have been audited under the requirements of Section 144
of the Charities Act 2011.
These financial statements have been prepared in accordance with the special
provisions of Part 15 of the Companies Act 2006 relating to small charitable
companies.
The financial statements were approved by the Board of Trustees on 8th October 2019
and were signed on its behalf by:

Chris Fox - Trustee

John Phillips - Trustee

THE NOTES ON PAGES 65 TO 87 FORM PART OF THESE ACCOUNTS.
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Cash Flow Statement
for the year ended 31 March 2019
Notes
__________________________________

2019
£

2018
£

__________________________________

__________________________________

Cash flows from operating activities:
Cash generated from operations

1

Net cash provided by (used in)
operating activities

471,706

72,394

__________________________________

__________________________________

471,706

72,394

__________________________________

__________________________________

(6,846)

(2,166)

8,002

-

Cash flows from investing activities:
Purchase of tangible fixed
assets
Loss on investments
Interest received
Net cash provided by (used in)
investing activities

5,812

5,578

__________________________________

__________________________________

6,968

3,412

__________________________________

__________________________________

Change in cash and cash
equivalents in the reporting period

478,674

75,806

Cash and cash equivalents at the
beginning of the reporting period

2,038,648

1,962,842

__________________________________

__________________________________

Cash and cash equivalents at
the end of the reporting period

2,517,322
========

2,038,648
========

Note 1 - Reconciliation of net income (expenditure) to
net cash flow from operating activities

Net (expenditure) / income for the reporting period
(as per the statement of financial activities)
Depreciation charges
Interest received
Decrease/(increase) in debtors
Increase/(decrease) in creditors
Net cash provided by (used in) operating activities

64

2019

2018

__________________________________

__________________________________

£

£

524,244

100,166

3,186

3,596

(5,812)

(5,578)

(251,096)

50,781

201,184

(76,571)

__________________________________

__________________________________

471,706

72,394

__________________________________

__________________________________

Salford Community and Voluntary Services – Notes forming part of the financial
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Notes forming part of the
financial statements
1.

Accounting policies
that are considered to be relevant.
Actual results may differ from these
estimates.

Basis of preparation
and assessment of
going concern

The estimates and underlying
assumptions are reviewed on an
ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting
estimated are recognised in the period
in which the estimate is revised if the
revision affects only that period, or in
the period of the revision and future
periods if the revision affects both
current and future periods.

The financial statements of the
charitable company, which is a public
benefit entity under FRS 102, have
been prepared in accordance with the
Charities SORP (FRS 102) 'Accounting
and Reporting by Charities: Statement
of Recommended Practice applicable
to charities preparing their accounts in
accordance with the Financial
Reporting Standard applicable in the
UK and Republic of Ireland (FRS 102)
(effective 1 January 2015)', Financial
Reporting Standard 102 'The Financial
Reporting Standard applicable in the
UK and Republic of Ireland' and the
Companies Act 2006. The financial
statements have been prepared under
the historical cost convention.

Management does not consider that
there are any key sources of estimation
uncertainty that have a significant effect
on the amounts recognised in the
financial statements.

Incoming resources
Income is recognised when the charity
has entitlement to the funds, any
performance conditions attached to the
item(s) of income have been met, it is
probable that the income will be
received and the amount can be
measured reliably.

The Trustees consider that there are
no material uncertainties about the
Charity’s ability to continue as a going
concern.

Critical accounting judgements
and key sources of estimation
uncertainty

a) Donations and grants
Income from donations and
grants, including capital grants, is
included in incoming resources
when these are receivable except
as follows:

In the application of the Company’s
accounting policies, management is
required to make judgements,
estimates and assumptions about the
carrying values of assets and liabilities
that are not readily apparent from other
sources. The estimates and
underlying assumptions are based on
historical experience and other factors

When donors specify that
donations and grants given to the
charity must be used in future
accounting periods, the income is
deferred until those periods.
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When donors impose conditions
which have to be fulfilled before
the charity becomes entitled to
use such income, the income is
deferred and not included in
incoming resources until the preconditions for use have been met.

included in the charitable activities
when payable.

Fund accounting
Funds held by the charity are either:
Unrestricted general funds - these are
funds which can be used in accordance
with the charitable objectives at the
discretion of the Trustees.

When donors specify that
donations and grants, including
capital grants, are for particular
restricted purposes, which do not
amount to pre-conditions
regarding entitlement, this income
is included in incoming resources
of restricted funds when
receivable.

Designated funds - these are funds set
aside by the Trustees out of
unrestricted general funds for specific
future purposes or projects.
Restricted funds - these are funds that
can only be used for particular
restricted purposes within the objects of
the charity. Restrictions arise when
specified by the donor or when funds
are raised for particular restricted
purposes.

b) Legacies and interest
receivable
These are included when
receivable by the charity.

Further explanation of the nature and
purpose of each fund is included in the
notes to the financial statements.

Resources expended
Resources expended are included in
the statement of financial activities on
an accruals basis, inclusive of any
V.A.T. which cannot be recovered.

Separate asset accounts are not
maintained for each fund if a better
return can be obtained by consolidating
the assets. However, they should
always be readily accessible,
dependent on the fund involved.

Certain expenditure is directly
attributable to specific activities and has
been included in those cost categories.
Certain other costs which are
attributable to more than one activity
are apportioned across cost categories
on the basis of the directors’ best
estimate.

Tangible fixed assets
Assets acquired by means of restricted
capital grants for time limited projects
are depreciated over the life of the
project.

The company does not make significant
grants in its own capacity but acts only
in partnership with various local and
national government departments and
other key partners (e.g. RHS) to
administer the distribution of grants to
other local charities and community
organisations. Distributions are made
in strict accordance with the criteria set
by the original funding body and are

Depreciation is provided on other fixed
assets at the following annual rates in
order to write off each asset over its
estimated useful life:
Computer equipment
cost

- 33 1/3% on

Office equipment
- 20% on net
book value and 33 1/3% on cost
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Fixtures and fittings
- 20% on net
book value and 33 1/3% on cost

Programme related investments
These are made directly in pursuit of
the organisation’s charitable purposes
and further the objects of the charity.
Whilst they may generate a small
amount of income they are not made
for those purposes and are often not on
commercial terms.

Investments
General investments
Investments are a form of basic
financial instrument and are initially
recognised at their transaction value
and subsequently measured at their fair
value as at the balance sheet date
using the closing quoted market price.
The statement of financial activities
includes the net gains and losses
arising on revaluation and disposals
throughout the year.

Taxation
The company is a registered charity
and as such is entitled to the exemption
from tax to the extent that the income
received falls within section 505
I.C.T.A. 1988 and section 256 C.G.T.A.
1992 and is applied to charitable
purposes only.

The charity does not acquire put
options, derivatives or other complex
financial instruments.

Pensions
Contributions in respect of the
company's defined contribution pension
scheme are charged to the income and
expenditure account for the year in
which they are payable to the scheme.

The main form of financial risk faced by
the charity is that volatility in equity
markets and investment markets due to
wider economic conditions, the attitude
of investors to investment risk, and
changes in sentiment concerning
equities and within particular sectors or
sub sectors.

2. Net income for the year
The net income for the year is stated
after charging:
2019
£
8,004

__________________________________

Auditors’ remuneration (see note 9)
Depreciation
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2018
£
7,694

__________________________________

3,186

3,596

__________________________________

__________________________________

11,190
=======

11,290
=======
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3. Voluntary income
Revenue
Grants
£

Total
2019
£

Total
2018
£

__________________________________

__________________________________

__________________________________

7,218

7,218

-

GMCVO – ‘Big Alcohol Conversation’

700

700

-

GMCVO – ‘Make Smoking History’

800

800

-

8,000

8,000

24,281

-

-

5,000

1,500

1,500

-

4,000

4,000

-

__________________________________

__________________________________

__________________________________

22,218

22,218

29,281

__________________________________

__________________________________

__________________________________

82,578

82,578

86,497

144,353

144,353

232,003

73,000

73,000

-

23,000

23,000

-

170,000

170,000

-

13,900

13,900

-

-

-

45,000

1,284

1,284

-

NHS Salford CCG - Emotional Wellbeing
and Mental Health grants

331,000

331,000

-

NHS Salford CCG - Social Value Alliance

500

500

-

1,000,000

1,000,000

1,000,000

Unrestricted
Grants receivable / contracts
Unrestricted grants / contracts:
Big Local Trust – Bankers Fee

Salford Third Sector Consortium
NHS Salford Clinical Commissioning Group
(AGM Pitch Event)
The Booth Charities
Voluntary Sector North West – Interim
Project Management
Total unrestricted voluntary income

Restricted
Age UK Salford - Ambition for Ageing
Investments Programme
Big Lottery - Big Local Trust (Little Hulton
Big Local)
GM H&SCP Via GMCVO - Big Alcohol
Conversation
GM H&SCP Via GMCVO - Social
Prescribing
GM Mental Health NHS Foundation Trust –
Achieve Bolton, Salford, Trafford Recovery
Fund
NHS Bolton CCG - Additional Wellbeing
Matters investment (Elemental)
NHS England - Cancer Champions
NHS England - GM Cancer Screening
Engagement programme

NHS Salford CCG - Third Sector Fund
grants programme
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3. Voluntary income (continued)
Revenue
Grants
£

(Continued)
Total
Total
2019
2018
£
£

__________________________________

__________________________________

__________________________________

67,500

67,500

-

120,000

120,000

120,000

527,147

527,147

2,852

-

-

6,000

31,706

31,706

31,706

9,000

9,000

9,251

Salford City Council - Health & Social Care
Salford City Council - Infrastructure,
Training & Development
Salford City Council - Short Break Care
grants
Salford City Council - Strategic
Development
Salford City Council - Volunteer Centre

39,810

39,810

39,810

80,737

80,737

80,737

70,000

70,000

60,000

85,000

85,000

85,000

28,315

28,315

28,315

Salford 4 Good
Salix Homes - Heart of Salford Awards
grant
The Booth Charities - Heart of Salford
Awards grant
The Royal Horticultural Society - Grow Well
match funding

7,949

7,949

-

-

-

1,000

-

-

2,000

15,000

15,000

-

NHS Salford CCG - VCSE Voices Matter
(Salford Together)
NHS Salford CCG - Volunteer Wellbeing
Champions (Salford Together – Community
Assets)
NHS Salford CCG - Wellbeing Matters
Programme
Salford City Council - 0-25 VCSE
Development Worker
Salford City Council - Children, Young
People & Families
Salford City Council - Hate Crime grants

Total restricted voluntary income
Total voluntary income
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2,921,779

2,921,779

1,830,171

__________________________________

__________________________________

__________________________________

2,943,997
========

2,943,997
========

1,859,452
========
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4. Charitable trading income
Unrestricted
Funds
£

Restricted
Funds
£
__________________________________

________________________________

________________________________

Training fees

2,520

-

2,520

3,900

Payroll service

5,623

-

5,623

4,145

15,858

-

15,858

16,016

__________________________________

Other
Returned grants

Total
2019
£

Total
2018
£

-

2,461

2,461

3,786

___________________________

___________________________

___________________________

__________________________

24,001
======

2,461
======

26,462
======

27,847
======

Returned grants income - £2,461 (Third Sector Fund), has been reallocated to future
grant rounds.

5.

Other income
Unrestricted Restricted
Funds
Funds
£
£

Mailing, photocopying
and other sales
DBS Checks

Total
2019
£

Total
2018
£

__________________________________

__________________________________

__________________________________

__________________________________

19,845

2,193

22,038

52,350

40,174

-

40,174

34,355

___________________________

_______________________

___________________________

___________________________

60,019
======

2,193
=====

62,212
======

86,705
======

The associated direct costs of DBS checks amounted to £20,291 (2018 - £17,366)
which is included in note 7 under Beneficiary Support Costs.

6. Total incoming resources
2019
£
111,449
2,927,034

__________________________________

Unrestricted
Restricted
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2018
£
120,245
1,859,337

__________________________________

___________________________________

__________________________________

3,038,483
========

1,979,582
========

Salford Community and Voluntary Services – Notes forming part of the financial
statements for year ended 31 March 2019

7. Charitable activities

Staff costs
£
__________________________________

Information, advice
and support
Grants distributed

816,970

Depreciation
£

__________________________________

3,185

__________________________________

816,970
=======

Other
Costs
£

__________________________________

Total
2019
£

__________________________________

__________________________________

555,766 1,375,921 1,051,281

- 1,137,315 1,137,315
__________________________________

Total
2018
£

__________________________________

__________________________________

828,135
__________________________________

3,185 1,693,081 2,513,236 1,879,416
======= ======= ======= =======

Other costs comprise:
Grants distributed (see note 8)
Consultancy fees
Premises and equipment
Website costs
Communications, marketing and promotion
Beneficiary support, meetings and events
Staff recruitment, training and travel
Subscriptions and affiliations
Insurances
Miscellaneous
Support costs (see note 9)
Refunded grant income
Write off investment in Salford Credit Union
(see note 14)
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2019
£
1,137,315
1,568
91,317
5,592
12,819
398,450
19,594
2,484
3,905
1,915
11,123
-

2018
£
828,134
43,969
53,333
8,796
10,950
160,063
26,866
5,464
3,927
1,194
10,136
80,681

__________________________________

__________________________________

6,999

-

__________________________________

__________________________________

1,693,081
========

1,233,513
========
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Grants distributed
All the grants were paid to not for profit institutions or Community Interest Organisations in
the Salford area and all were paid on behalf of the funder, who had requested the charity
administer the funds for distribution. The charity retains a proportion of funds for
management and administration costs.
The payment of grants is within the objects of the charity.

8.

Grants distributed

NHS Salford CCG Third Sector Fund
Grow Well Fund
Healthy Schools Fund
Healthy Schools Partnership Challenge
Impact Fund
Impact Partnership Fund
Volunteers’ Expenses Fund
Volunteers’ Week Activity Fund
Wellbeing Fund
Responsiveness Fund
Salford CCG Innovation Fund
Innovation Fund
Other
Achieve, Bolton, Salford and Trafford Asset Fund
Ambition for Ageing investments
Emotional Wellbeing and Mental Health grants
GM Cancer Champions grants
Hate Crime Grants
Little Hulton Big Local grants and investments
NHS Salford CCG ‘Pitch in 60 Seconds’ AGM
Royal Horticultural Society grants
Salford 4 Good
Salford CVS ‘Pitch in 60 Seconds’ AGM
Short Break Care grants
Restricted fund
Prior years grants not taken up
Total grants
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__________________________________

2019
£

__________________________________

2018
£

7,389
93,672
70,264
217,162
169,015
21,436
9,914
98,631
5,000
692,483

145,045
69,322
205,466
122,870
15,733
49,527
607,963

__________________________________

__________________________________

__________________________________

__________________________________

__________________________________

-

__________________________________

__________________________________

__________________________________

47,264
73,239
174,805
8,009
52,901
15,000
9,756
1,000
63,358
445,332
(500)
1,137,315

87,809
10,550
8,410
28,140
5,000
655
1,000
62,128
203,692
828,135

16,480
16,480

__________________________________

__________________________________

__________________________________

__________________________________

__________________________________

__________________________________

__________________________________

__________________________________
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Grants Analysis 2018/19
Third Sector Fund

Other Funds

Grow Well Fund – 5 grants with
inimum recipient £1,000 and maximum
recipient £1,947, total £7,389.

Achieve Bolton, Salford and Trafford
Asset Fund – 10 grants minimum
£1,507, maximum £10,430, total
£47,264

Healthy Schools Fund - 14 grants
with minimum recipient £4,535 and
maximum recipient £19,480, total
£93,672.

Ambition for Ageing - 41 grants
minimum £116, maximum £6,250, total
£73,239.

Healthy Schools Partnership
Challenge - 5 grants with minimum
recipient £10,738 and maximum
recipient £15,000, total £70,264.

Emotional Wellbeing and Mental
Health - 9 grants minimum £3,150,
maximum £50,000, total £174,805.
Hate Crime - 11 grants with minimum
recipient £459 and maximum recipient
£900, total £8,009.

Impact Fund - 16 grants with
minimum recipient £7,107 and
maximum recipient £15,000 total
£217,162.

Little Hulton Big Local - 70 grants and
investments minimum £16, maximum
£5,000, total £52,901.

Impact Partnership Fund - 4 grants
with minimum recipient £26,250 and
maximum recipient £49,992, total
£169,015.

Royal Horticultural Society - 8 grants
minimum £1,000, maximum £2,000,
total £15,000.

Volunteers’ Expenses Fund - 29
grants with minimum recipient £452
and maximum recipient £750, total
£21,436.

Salford 4 Good - 1 grant total £9,756.
Salford CVS (Pitch in 60 Seconds at
2018 AGM) - 1 grant of £1,000

Volunteers’ Week Activity Fund - 21
grants with minimum recipient £260
and maximum recipient £500, total
£9,914.

Short Break Care - 13 grants with
minimum recipient £4,270 and
maximum recipient £5,000, total
£63,358.

Wellbeing Fund - 101 grants with
minimum recipient £681 and maximum
recipient £1,000, total £98,631.
Responsiveness Fund – 1 grant of
£5,000.
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9.

Support costs
2019
£
4,254
3,750
1,085
2,034

Accountancy
Audit
Bank charges
AGM expenses

10.

2018
£
4,094
3,600
942
1,500

__________________________________

__________________________________

__________________________________

__________________________________

11,123
=======

10,136
=======

Staff costs
__________________________________

2019
£

__________________________________

2018
£

707,427

557,147

61,703

47,954

Staff costs comprise:
Salaries (including redundancies)
Social security
Pension contributions

None of the Trustees received any
remuneration from the charity. One of
the Trustees was reimbursed a total of
£26 travel expenses (2018 one Trustee
- £67).

47,840

37,206

__________________________________

__________________________________

816,970
=======

642,307
=======

The average number of employees in
the year calculated on a full time
equivalent basis was 22.89 (2018 –
18.57).

Three key personnel received total
emoluments of £127,298. No employee
earned £60,000 per annum or more.

11.

Transfers between funds

Some transfers between restricted
funds have been made where one fund
has ended and other similar projects
have been undertaken. These transfers
are within the scope of the restricted
terms of the fund.

Certain transfers have been made from
unrestricted funds where projects have
had an excess of expenditure over
income.
See note 18 for further details.

74

Salford Community and Voluntary Services – Notes forming part of the financial
statements for year ended 31 March 2019

12. Comparatives for the statement of financial
activities
Unrestricted
funds
£

Restricted
funds
£

Total funds
2018
£

29,281

1,830,171

1,859,452

5,308

270

5,578

24,061
61,595

3,786
25,110

27,847
86,705

__________________________________

__________________________________

__________________________________

120,245

1,859,337

1,979,582

__________________________________

__________________________________

__________________________________

__________________________________

__________________________________

__________________________________

Incomes and expenditure
Incoming resources:
Voluntary income
Investment income:
Bank and building society income
Income from charitable activities:
Charitable trading
Other income
Total income
Resources expended:
Charitable activities
Total expenditure
Net incoming / (outgoing)
resources before transfers
Transfers between funds
Movement in funds
Fund balance brought forward
Fund balance carried forward

(164,785)

(1,714,631)

(1,879,416)

__________________________________

__________________________________

__________________________________

(164,785)

(1,714,631)

(1,879,416)

__________________________________

__________________________________

__________________________________

(44,540)
(13,959)

144,706
13,959

100,166
-

__________________________________

__________________________________

__________________________________

(58,499)
524,094

158,665
333,882

100,166
857,976

__________________________________

__________________________________

__________________________________

465,595
=======

492,547
=======

958,142
=======

13. Tangible fixed assets
Computers
and other
equipment
£

Fixtures and
fittings

Total

__________________________________

__________________________________

£

£

21,096

15,641

36,737

__________________________________

Cost
At 1 April 2018
Additions
At 31 March 2019

4,224

2,622

6,846

__________________________________

__________________________________

__________________________________

25,320
=======

18,263
=======

43,583
=======

16,134

15,195

31,239

Accumulated depreciation
At 1 April 2018
Charge for the year

2,933

253

3,186

__________________________________

__________________________________

__________________________________
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Tangible fixed assets (continued)
Computers
and other
equipment
£
19,067
=======

Fixtures and
fittings

Total

__________________________________

__________________________________

£
15,448
=======

£
34,515
=======

6,253
=======
4,962
=======

2,815
=======
446
=======

9,068
=======
5,408
=======

__________________________________

At 31 March 2019
Net book values
At 31 March 2019
As at 31 March 2018

14. Investments
2019
£
12,912

__________________________________

Brown Shipley Stirling Bond Inc Fund
Salford Credit Union – Programme related
investment

Brown Shipley Sterling Bond Inc
Fund: Investments were transferred to
Salford Community and Voluntary
Services in April 2015 as part of the
transfer of the Pennington Bequest and
are included at the transfer value. The
fair value at 31 March 2019 was
£13,411. The Trustees did not consider
the difference sufficiently material to
alter the carrying value in the accounts.

2018
£
13,915

__________________________________

1

7,000

__________________________________

__________________________________

12,913
=======

20,915
=======

the money be used for charitable
purposes for the benefit of Salford
people who are in need.
In 2015 an investment fund for the
Pennington Bequest was closed and
the proportion relating to Salford CVS,
£53,115, was transferred to the direct
control of Salford CVS.
In 2016 Salford CVS' Board of
Trustees agreed to invest funds into a
programme that would provide longterm benefit to the people of Salford
and therefore saw the ‘programme
related investment’ of £7,000 into
Salford Credit Union as an ideal
opportunity.

Salford Credit Union Investment –
Programme related investment:
Salford CVS made this investment as
a result of the Pennington Bequest, a
bequest held since 1974. This bequest
came from an ex-resident of Salford
who emigrated to Australia, leaving
approx. £12,000 to provide an ongoing
income for our organisation. The terms
of the bequest stated that

The Trustees do not expect to recover
this investment and hence it has been
written down to £1 in the accounts.
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15. Debtors
2019
£
287,143

__________________________________

Other debtors
Prepayments and accrued income

2018
£
97,772

__________________________________

77,083

15,358

__________________________________

__________________________________

364,226
=======

113,130
=======

Included in other debtors in 2018 was £3,000 due for payment in March 2019.

16. Creditors – amounts falling due within
one year
2019
£
84,967

__________________________________

Funds held as custodian trustee
Accruals and deferred income

2018
£
83,650

__________________________________

1,336,176

1,136,309

__________________________________

__________________________________

1,421,143
========

1,219,959
========

At 31 March 2019, Salford CVS held funds as custodian trustee on behalf of 39
voluntary / not for profit organisations based in Salford (2018 - 30 organisations).
Details are given in the Trustees report.
Included in deferred income are grants totalling £1,075,000 relating to the 2019/20
year. (In 2018/19 it was £1,067,500).

17. Analysis of net assets between funds
Tangible
fixed assets
£
__________________________________

Investments
__________________________________

£

Net current
assets
£
__________________________________

Total
__________________________________

£

Restricted funds:
Income funds
Unrestricted funds

-

-

901,377

901,377

______________________________

______________________________

______________________________

______________________________

9,068
9,068
=======

12,913
12,913
=======

901,377
559,028
1,460,405
========

901,377
581,009
1,482,386
========

______________________________

______________________________
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18. Restricted funds
Balance
brought
forward

- Movement in Year -

Transfers
between
funds
received/
(paid)

Balance
carried
forward

Incoming

Outgoing

______________________________

__________________________________

__________________________________

__________________________________

______________________________

£

£

£

£

£

2,668

82,577

(82,964)

(2,281)

-

52,739

144,353

(176,671)

(11,792)

8,629

-

73,000

(54,460)

(8,000)

10,540

-

23,000

(19,864)

(3,136)

-

-

170,000

(81,264)

(19,500)

69,236

-

13,900

-

-

13,900

24,700

-

-

-

24,700

-

1,284

(1,284)

-

-

13,636

-

(1,436)

-

12,200

-

331,000

(174,805)

(30,000)

126,195

256,458 1,002,461

(842,335)

(100,000)

316,584

Income funds
Age UK Salford – Ambition
for Ageing Investments
Programme
Big Lottery – Big Local Trust
(Little Hulton Big Local)
GM H&SCP via GMCVO –
Big Alcohol Conversation
GM H&SCP via GMCVO –
Social Prescribing
GM Mental Health NHS
Foundation Trust - Achieve
Bolton, Salford, Trafford
Recovery Fund
NHS Bolton CCG –
Additional Wellbeing Matters
investment (Elemental)
NHS England – Cancer
Champions
NHS England – GM Cancer
Screening Engagement
programme
NHS Salford CCG –
Dementia App
NHS Salford CCG –
Emotional Wellbeing and
Mental Health grants
NHS Salford CCG – Third
Sector Fund grants
programme
NHS Salford CCG – VCSE
Voices Matter (Salford
Together)
NHS Salford CCG –
Volunteer Wellbeing
Champions (Salford
Together – Community
Assets)
NHS Salford CCG –
Wellbeing Matters
Programme

-

67,500

(43,193)

(12,000)

12,307

87,642

120,000

(126,387)

-

81,255

527,148

(353,385)

-

173,763
-
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Restricted funds
(continued)
Salford City Council –
Children, Young People &
Families
Salford City Council –
Employee Secondment
costs
Salford City Council – Hate
Crime grants
Salford City Council – Health
& Social Care
Salford City Council –
Infrastructure, Training &
Development
Salford City Council – Social
Value Alliance
Salford City Council –
Strategic Development
Salford City Council – Short
Break Care grants
Salford City Council –
Volunteer Centre
Salford 4 Good (fundraising
income)
Salford 4 Good (flood
monies)
Royal Horticultural Society –
Grow Well match funding
Volunteers’ Expenses Fund
Total restricted funds

Balance
brought
forward

- Movement in Year -

Transfers
between
funds
received/
(paid)

Balance
carried
forward

Incoming

Outgoing

______________________________

__________________________________

__________________________________

_________________________________

______________________________

£

£

£

£

£

-

31,706

(31,706)

-

-

18,796

-

(3,891)

-

14,905

173

9,000

(8,009)

(900)

264

-

39,810

(39,810)

-

-

-

80,737

(80,737)

-

-

2,516

500

(3,016)

-

-

-

85,000

(85,000)

-

-

19,418

70,000

(63,358)

(3,549)

22,511

-

28,315

(31,844)

3,529

-

6,017

7,193

(400)

-

12,810

6,807

2,949

(9,756)

-

-

-

15,000

(15,000)

-

-

977

601

-

-

1,578

_____________________________

___________________________________

_______________________________________

_________________________________

______________________________

492,547 2,927,034 (2,330,575)
_____________________________

___________________________________

_______________________________________

(187,629)

901,377

_________________________________

_____________________________

Transfers
Where the transfer is an expense to unrestricted funds it represents a recharge of
central costs as allowed for under the funding agreement where the transfer is
received from unrestricted funds it is to cover a shortfall on restricted funding.
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Details of restricted funds
Ambition for
Ageing
Investments
programme

Age UK
Salford

Salford CVS continue to work in partnership with
Age UK Salford (lead partner) and Inspiring
Communities Together to deliver a programme of
work to enable older people’s voices to be
influential and ensure communities continue to
become more age friendly. Salford CVS’s role is to
administer an investment programme which puts
older people at the heart of designing the places
they want to live in order to improve their wellbeing
and environment. This funding comes from the GM
Ambition for Ageing programme, administered by
GMCVO and funded by The Big Lottery.

Little Hulton
Big Local

Big Lottery Big Local
Trust

Salford CVS is acting as the Local Trusted
Organisation (LTO) for Little Hulton Big Local
(LHBL), providing financial management,
coordination and project management support to
ensure the effective implementation of the Big
Local Plan objectives. This includes employing
LHBL’s three paid staff.

GM Big
Alcohol
Conversation

GMCVO
(GM Health
& Social
Care
Partnership)

During the year 10GM (of which Salford CVS is a
member) and GMCVO jointly bid to GM Health &
Social Care Partnership to deliver a piece of
community engagement work around their Big
Alcohol Conversation campaign. GMCVO agreed
to be the accountable body for this work. Salford
CVS, on behalf of 10GM, ran a small investments
fund to support the Big Alcohol Conversation
across GM. This fund was set up to support
community-based organisations to engage with
their members, beneficiaries and networks through
the completion of surveys, one-to-one
conversations and focus groups.

GM Social
Prescribing
research

GMCVO
(GM Health
& Social
Care
Partnership)

Salford CVS are members of the GM Devolution
VCSE Reference Group, who have an MoU with
the GM Health & Social Care Partnership. GMCVO
are the accountable body for this work. In 2018/19
Salford CVS undertook a piece of work for the
Reference Group to map social prescribing across
Greater Manchester, enlisting the support of the
University of Salford to complete this research and
produce a report.
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Achieve
Bolton, Salford
and Trafford
Recovery Fund

Greater
Manchester
Mental
Health NHS
Foundation

Grants and Investments scheme to support people
in recovery from drug and alcohol use. Salford
CVS operate this scheme on behalf of 10GM,
across the local authority areas of Bolton, Salford
and Trafford.

‘Wellbeing
Matters’
additional data
management
support

Bolton CCG
(GM Health
& Social
Care
Partnership)

Contribution to the Elemental Data Management
System, supporting the Wellbeing Matters
programme to link directly to GPs’ systems

GM Cancer
Champions

NHS
England

Cancer Champions is a movement aiming to bring
20,000 local people and organisations together to
help prevent cancer across Greater Manchester
and also to support people who have been
diagnosed.
www.gmhsc.org.uk/greatermanchestercancercham
pions/
Voluntary Sector North West are the lead delivery
partner for this work.

Answer
Cancer:
Greater
Manchester
Cancer
Screening
Engagement
Programme

NHS
England

Answer Cancer is a Voluntary, Community &
Social Enterprise (VCSE) sector-led response to
cancer in Greater Manchester. This initiative is a
partnership of four VCSE organisations: Salford
CVS (accountable body) - on behalf of 10GM VSNW, BHA for Equality, and Unique
Improvements. Answer Cancer aims to increase
cancer screening rates in GM, especially within
communities where take-up is currently low.

‘The Salford
NHS Salford To continue to develop an application for mobile
Way’ Dementia CCG
(smart) phones to enable people experiencing the
App
onset of or living with dementia, their carers’, family
and friends to access an easy to use smartphone
app where they can find out about local Salford
services that are dementia friendly (e.g. shops, taxi
firms, dentists, chiropodists, hairdressers, etc.) at
the touch of a button.
Emotional
Wellbeing and
Mental Health
grants

NHS Salford This is a new grants scheme designed to fund a
CCG
range of projects aimed at improving and
sustaining the mental health of Salford residents
and helping to achieve the targets set out in the 5
Year Forward View for Mental Health.
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Third Sector
Fund grants
programme

NHS Salford Salford CVS design, manage and administer this
CCG
large grants fund on behalf of NHS Salford CCG.
(GM Health The aim of the fund is to invest in VCSE
organisations and primary schools in Salford in
& Social
order to help improve the health and wellbeing of
Care
Partnership) Salford residents.

VCSE Voices
Matter

NHS Salford
CCG
(Salford
Together)

To enable VCSE participation in Salford Together,
including attendance at the Integrated Care
Advisory Board and also emerging Health
Neighbourhood Forums.

Volunteer
Wellbeing
Champions
programme

NHS Salford
CCG
(Salford
Together)

The Volunteer Wellbeing Champions Programme
is delivered by Salford CVS as part of the
Community Assets workstream of Salford
Together, led by Inspiring Communities Together.

‘Wellbeing
Matters’ PCCA
programme

NHS Salford
CCG ( GM
H&SCP
Transformat
ion Funding)

This new VCSE-led programme of work
commenced in April 2018. The programme takes
Person and Community-Centred Approaches
(PCCA) to health and wellbeing, and is funded
through the Greater Manchester Health and Social
Care Partnership’s Transformation Fund (TF),
helping transform how we deliver population health
benefits in Salford. Wellbeing Matters is part of a
wider TF funded approach to population health in
Salford, headed up by Salford Council’s public
health team and NHS Salford CCG.
Salford CVS are the accountable body and lead
partner for the Wellbeing Matters programme,
which incorporates three interdependent
workstreams around social prescribing,
volunteering and social value. The programme is
delivered in partnership with Salford Third Sector
Consortium (workstream 1), Inspiring Communities
Together (workstream 2), and Salford Social Value
Alliance (workstream 3).

Children,
Young People
and Families
(CYPF)

Salford City
Council

Funded by Salford City Council, this CYPF work
brings together voluntary and community
organisations working with children, young people
and families in Salford. It provides broad-ranging
representation of the interests and views of
members to relevant strategic partnerships. Also
includes child safeguarding.
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Employee
secondment
costs

Salford City
Council

Contribution to secondment costs.

Hate Crime
grants

Salford City
Council

Salford CVS administer these grants on behalf of
Salford City Council. The aim of the fund is to
support activities during Hate Crime week.

Health &
Social Care

Salford City
Council

Funded jointly by Salford City Council and NHS
Salford CCG to ensure engagement of the sector
on key health and social care issues, including
mental health, carers, dementia and
personalisation. Also includes adult safeguarding.

Infrastructure,
Training and
Development
(incl. 1-to-1
and group
support)

Salford City
Council

Funded by Salford City Council to develop and
improve the VCSE sector in Salford by providing
training sessions; information, advice and
guidance; and 1-to-1 group support. This includes
topic areas such as legal structures, business
planning, governance, fundraising, funding bids,
social investment, tendering, social value and
demonstrating impact, equalities, marketing, and
much more.

Social Value

Salford City
Council

Salford CVS supported the cross-partnership
Social Value programme in Salford by facilitating
and administrating the Salford Social Value
Alliance. This included organising, administering
and chairing core group and large alliance
meetings; and maintaining the Salford Social Value
website.

Strategic
Development

Salford City
Council

Funded by Salford City Council to support the
VCSE sector to be engaged and involved in all
aspects of strategic city partnership work, ensuring
they understand, actively contribute to and
influence key partnership areas of work. Includes
organising and facilitating sector representation on
all key partnership boards in the city.
Also supporting and enabling the VCSE sector to
operate robustly within the Salford social,
economic and political environment. Involves
operating a robust programme for voice and
influence, including organising various themed
forums and strategic workshops on a regular basis
and an annual VCSE conference.
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Strategic
Development

Salford City
Council

Funded by Salford City Council to support the
VCSE sector to be engaged and involved in all
aspects of strategic city partnership work, ensuring
they understand, actively contribute to and
influence key partnership areas of work. Includes
organising and facilitating sector representation on
all key partnership boards in the city.
Also supporting and enabling the VCSE sector to
operate robustly within the Salford social,
economic and political environment. Involves
operating a robust programme for voice and
influence, including organising various themed
forums and strategic workshops on a regular basis
and an annual VCSE conference.

Short Break
Care Grants

Salford City
Council

Salford CVS administer these grants on behalf of
Salford City Council. The aim of the fund is to
promote innovation and development in the
provision of group-based short break care for
children with disabilities in Salford.

Salford
Volunteer
Centre

Salford City
Council

Part-funded by Salford City Council to support
volunteering development, good practice and
brokerage services in Salford – by the city’s only
accredited Volunteer Centre. This includes
operating a bespoke volunteering portal for the city
and organising the prestigious annual Heart of
Salford volunteering awards.
Also funded by Salford CVS reserves and income
generation activities.

Salford4Good

Income
Salford 4 Good is a partnership between 5 Salford
Generation
community based organisations who have
(fundraising) combined their expertise to make it easier for
individuals and businesses to give time, skills,
money and resources to local good causes.
Salford CVS is the accountable body.

Salford4Good
Flood Monies

Fundraising
/ DCLG

Grant income from DCLG and fundraised income
restricted to expenditure on flood relief activities in
Broughton.

RHS for Grow
Well Fund

Royal
Horticultural
Society

Contribution to the Grow Well Grants Fund,
funding match to the Third Sector Fund grants
programme

Volunteers’
Expenses
Fund

Restricted investment income from the Pennington
Bequest to enable volunteering in the city of
Salford.
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19. Unrestricted funds
Balance
brought
forward

_____________________________

- Movement in
Year In

Balance
carried
Utilised Provided in forward

Transfers between funds

Out Restricted
funds

or
released
in year

year

__________________________

______________________________

_____________________________

_____________________________

__________________________

__________________________

£

£

£

£

£

£

£

259,874

111,449

(183,664)

187,629

(110,112)

298,558

Redundancy
reserve

130,310

-

-

-

-

(22,106)

108,204

Emergency
Response
Volunteering

-

-

-

-

-

4,000

4,000

Volunteer
Centre
Salford

18,500

-

-

-

3,529

(1,782)

20,247

Gaps in
Funding

10,141

-

-

-

(10,141)

-

-

Research &
Development

46,770

-

-

-

(26,770)

-

20,000

State of the
VCSE Sector
Report

-

-

-

-

-

5,000

5,000

IT Upgrades

-

-

-

-

-

15,000

15,000

Internal
Building
Improvement

-

-

-

-

-

20,000

20,000

Office
Furniture &
Equipment

-

-

-

-

-

10,000

10,000

VCSE
Campaigns &
Alliances

-

-

-

-

-

12,000

12,000

Compliance

-

-

-

-

-

28,000

28,000

Staffing
Contingency

-

-

-

-

-

40,000

40,000

_____________________________

_____________________________

________________________________

_____________________________

__________________________

______________________________

__________________________

465,595 111,449 (183,664) 187,629
======= ======= ======== =======

======

======

581,009
======

General
reserve

33,382

Designated
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Designated Funds
The Trustees agreed that provision
should be made to earmark part of
general funds to specific projects or
reserves.

State of the VCSE Sector Report: to
provide for the cost of research and
printing of the 2019/20 State of the
Sector survey.

Redundancy Reserve: to provide for
the cost of redundancy should the
organisation have to close in the year.

IT Upgrades: to provide for the cost of
replacing IT infrastructure.
Internal Building Improvement: to
provide for the cost of replacing
fixtures and fittings and providing
enhanced facilities to staff.

Emergency Response Volunteering:
to support emergency response
initiatives in Salford with a coordinated
volunteering programme.

Office Furniture and Equipment: to
provide for the cost of replacing office
furniture and equipment.

Volunteer Centre Salford: to support
the unfunded delivery of services in the
Volunteer Centre.

VSCE Campaigns and Alliances: to
support campaigning and frontline
activity in Salford e.g. our Living Wage
work.

Gaps in Funding: to provide funding
to projects during gaps in funding and
any additional needs identified during
projects.

Compliance: to provide for the cost of
additional resources required to
maintain compliance with GDPR,
Health & Safety and HR.

Research and Development: to
support costs of internal capacity
building and independent research and
development as required by the
organisation.

Staffing Contingency: to provide for
the cost of covering staff absence.

20. Contingent liabilities
There were no contingent liabilities of a
material amount for which provision has
not been made in the accounts.

21. Commitments
Capital commitments: There were no
capital commitments at 31 March 2019
(2018 - £Nil).

Pension commitments: The company
operates a defined contribution pension
scheme. The assets of the scheme are
held separately from those of the
company in independently administered
funds. The pension cost charge
represents contributions payable by the
company to the funds and amounted to
£47,840 (2018 - £37,206). The amount
due to the pension fund at the year-end
was £nil (2018 - £nil).

Operating Lease Commitment: At 31
March 2019 the charity had an
operating lease commitment in respect
of plant and machinery of £6,536
which expire within 2-5 years. It also
had an annual lease for property rental
of £9,200 p.a. plus service charge of
£4,800.
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22. Related-party transactions
Salford Community and Voluntary
Services provide management and
administrative support to Salford Third
Sector Consortium on behalf of the
Trustees of that organisation.
During the year, Salford Community
and Voluntary Services re-charged
Salford Third Sector Consortium
£8,000 for this ‘hub support’. This
amount was included within voluntary
income under unrestricted grants /
contracts.
All the above transactions took place
on an arms-length basis.

87

Salford Community and Voluntary Services – Notes forming part of the financial
statements for year ended 31 March 2019

Our Quality Marks

Campaigns we support
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Our staff
Alison Page – Chief Executive
Kirsten Blackwood – Deputy Chief Executive (Finance and Resources)
Louise Murray – Deputy Chief Executive (Projects and Partnerships)
Bruce Poole - Salford Together VCSE Partnerships Lead
Wendy Ryan - Programme Manager (Person and Community Centred
Approaches)
Michelle Warburton - Voice and Influence Manager
Anne-Marie Marshall – Services Manager
Jeremy Engineer – Development Worker
Lesmond Taylor – Development Worker
Deb Drinkwater - Development Worker
Claire Roberts – Volunteering Development Worker
Michael Carroll – Volunteering Development Worker
Beatty Osborne – Volunteering Development Worker
Matt Bell - Volunteering Development Worker
Kate Wels - Volunteering Development Worker
Gill Bruder – Office Manager and PA to the Chief Executive
Ashley Chapman – Administrator (Grants and Investments)
Jon Roberts – Administrator (Meetings and Events)
Sharon Boswell – Administrator (Membership Services)
Becky Roberts – Communications and Information Worker
Samantha Hill – Finance Assistant
Cathrine Lee – Grants Administrator
Simon Robinson – Grants Manager
Hannah Barton - Impact and Evaluation Worker
Anna Horton - Healthy Schools Development Worker
Alison Jones – Little Hulton Big Local Development Manager
Susan Owen – Little Hulton Big Local Community Organiser
Mandy Lee - Little Hulton Big Local Youth Development Worker

Our trustees
Chris Fox
John Phillips
Janice Lowndes
Ray Mashiter
Ged Devlin
Grace Dyke
Dr Kevin Kane
Dr Jennifer Rouse
Barbara Bentham

Our volunteers
Council
Ambassadors
Cllr Laura Edwards
Cllr Sophia Linden
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Greg McHugh
Peter Shepherd
Everyone who is part of the
Wellbeing Champions Team
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